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We are pleased to present 
the City of Mitcham’s 2018/19 
Annual Report. This report 
describes the Council’s 
performance in delivering the 
Annual Business Plan & Budget 
activities over the financial 
year as they contribute to 
the strategic objectives and 
priorities of the Strategic 
Management Plan 2017-2027.

This report is designed to provide our 
community, customers and stakeholders 
with an overview of the activities, 
projects and services delivered and 
implemented across the city during the 
year as well as ensuring Council meets 
its obligations under section 131 of the 
Local Government Act 1999.  

This report is divided into seven sections:

• Mitcham Profile

• Our Council

• Our Performance

• Our Leadership and People

• Our Governance

• Financial Statements

• Subsidiary Annual Reports

Council’s website provides more 
information about Council’s plans, 
policies and activities. Please visit 
mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au.

You feedback is valuable as it helps us 
improve our next report. If you would 
like to provide feedback or would like 
more information about anything in this 
report, please contact us.

Email your feedback or questions to:  
mitcham@mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au 

Write to us at: 
PO Box 21 
Mitcham Shopping Centre 
Torrens Park SA 5062

Speak to a Customer Communications 
Officer on 08 8372 8888

WELCOME TO 
THE CITY OF MITCHAM 
2018/19 ANNUAL 
REPORT
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Australia Day 2019 at Carrick Hill
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Adelaide skyline

OUR VISION
We are a welcoming and inclusive community that 
values its heritage and natural environment.
The community’s aspirations for the future are captured 
in “Mitcham 2017-2027 - Let us build for posterity”. 
In order to achieve the Vision for the City of Mitcham, 
Council is focussing its efforts around the following 
five goals: 
• Accessible and Connected Community
• Sustainable City
• Dynamic and Prosperous Economy
• Vibrant and Rich Culture
• Continuous Organisational Improvement
The Goals are underpinned by objectives which provide 
a focus for Council in developing its annual business 
plan actions each year.     
The Annual Business Plan and Budget process 
determines the activities to be undertaken during 
the year. Council’s performance in delivering 
those activities for 2018/19 is provided in the Our 
Performance section of this report.
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MITCHAM PROFILE
The City of Mitcham is one of the oldest councils in South Australia, comprising towns and suburbs 
settled by Europeans from as early as 1837. This picturesque City is located in the foothills 
approximately six kilometres south of Adelaide. The City has an enviable blend of both urban and 
semi-rural areas and is renowned for its avenues of street trees, its beautiful parks, reserves and 
gardens, its historic homes, unique historical areas and its magnificent views from the hills over the 
City and to the coast.

The City of Mitcham covers an area 
of 75.7 square kilometres, with a 
population of approximately 66,700 
and over 5,000 registered businesses 
generating over 30,500 local jobs and 
$3.5 billion in Gross Regional Product.  

The original inhabitants of the Mitcham 
area were the Kaurna Aboriginal 
people. European settlement began 
in areas of Mitcham Village, St Marys 
and Coromandel Valley, accelerating 
in the mid to late 1800s, spurred by 
the opening of the railway line, with 
new residents attracted by the semi-
rural surrounds of the foothills. Growth 
continued in the early 1900s, with the 
most significant development during 
the interwar period and post-war years. 
Much of the recent growth has been in 
the southern suburb of Craigburn Farm.

The City is well served by many tourist 
attractions including Carrick Hill Estate, 
Belair National Park, Brown Hill Creek 
Reserve, Waite Arboretum, Wittunga 
Botanic Garden, Sturt River Linear Trail, 
Colebrook Reconciliation Park, reserves 
and numerous trails through the historic 
Mitcham Precinct, Blackwood, Brown 
Hill Creek, Colonel Light Gardens, Lower 
Mitcham and St Marys.

The diversity of the Mitcham area is 
unique with our suburbs including State 
Heritage listed Colonel Light Gardens 
part of the original Thousand Home 
Scheme and Australia’s most complete 
example of an early 1900s garden 
suburb; historic Belair, a unique suburb 
surrounded on three sides by parks 
including South Australia’s oldest park 
Belair National Park; Springfield, one of 
Adelaide’s most prestigious suburbs with 
sweeping views over the Adelaide plans; 
Bedford Park and St Marys, adjacent to 
Flinders University and home to many 
new Mitcham residents and students 
from overseas as well as a new housing 
development at Craigburn Farm.

The majority of properties located in 
Mitcham are residential with over 26,000 
dwellings across 33 suburbs each with 
their own particular style and community 
spirit. New dwelling construction is 
relatively stable with an average of 
143 approvals per year over the last 10 
years with the majority of people living 
in separate houses. Most commercial 
premises are located along or near Belair 
Road, Goodwood Road, South Road and 
Main Road (Blackwood and Belair). Most 
industrial premises are located along 
the western boundary immediately 
adjoining South Road.

Our City’s largest industries are Health 
Care and Social Assistance and Education 
and Training.  We have world-class 
medical and research facilities, including 
Flinders Medical Centre, Flinders Centre 
for Innovation in Cancer, Flinders Private 
Hospital and the Repatriation General 
Hospital within our City.  Our vibrant 
education sector is home to over 65 high 
quality educational institutions including 
kindergartens, schools and universities 
such as the Waite Institute, Flinders 
University and the Australian Science 
& Mathematics School with many local 
and international students living locally. 
The City is also home to Centennial Park 
Cemetery Authority, a joint regional 
subsidiary of the Cities of Mitcham and 
Unley.

Mitcham boasts a diverse range of 
unique natural habitats, specimen trees 
and native vegetation that form part 
of a significant green corridor across 
the western slopes of the Mount Lofty 
Ranges. The hills are the home of many 
threatened native plants and animals 
and preserving our natural landscape is 
an important legacy.

Mitcham is in the catchment area for 
both Brown Hill Creek and the Sturt 
River and collects significant volumes of 
stormwater from the Adelaide foothills 
before flowing into Gulf St Vincent.
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$3.55 
billion
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Civic Centre, Torrens Park

OUR  
COUNCIL
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MESSAGE FROM 
THE MAYOR AND CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Our Year in Review

Council maintained its focus on 
achieving efficiencies and good financial 
management across the financial year.

This focus resulted in a net operating 
surplus of approximately $1.8 million 
and savings of $604,000. 

This competitive end-of-year position 
has not come at the expense of many 
exciting community outcomes as 
outlined in this Annual Report.

We are pleased with the achievements 
of the City of Mitcham and the outcomes 
being enjoyed by the community. 

Redeveloped Mitcham Memorial 
Library and Soldiers Memorial 
Gardens

We celebrated the reopening of the 
redeveloped library, which now provides 
a wide range of services and spaces to 
the community, attracting both new 
visitors and library members. 

Meeting rooms and reading areas face 
the beautifully redeveloped Brownhill 
Creek to provide delightful, flexible 
spaces for community use. 

Other new innovations include a 
dedicated youth zone, integrated 
toy library and new solar bench for 
recharging portable devices. 

The relatively modest cost of this 
redevelopment has amazed the industry 
and demonstrates Council’s commitment 
to providing quality services at value for 
money.

The amenity surrounding the library has 
also been enhanced by improvements 
to Brownhill Creek including a new 
innovative surface material to provide 
improved stability during flood events 
and for the growth of new native plants. 

Stepping boulders and logs have also 
been installed to create an active nature 
play space for use when the creek is dry 
or not flowing, further enhancing the 
library experience.

We were also delighted to receive the 
award for Sustainable Infrastructure from 
the Institute of Public Works Engineering 
Australasia and receive a commendation 
from Parks and Leisure Australia for the 
Mitcham Memorial Library and Brownhill 
Creek Project.

Leadership and innovation in the 
reuse and recycling of materials

Council delivered an asphalt road using a 
combination of recycled tyre rubber and 
bitumen at Stanlake Avenue, St Marys. 

The road forms part of a trial expected to 
deliver improved strength and resistance 
to cracking in the local expansive 
clay soils. 

The project received the Australian 
Asphalt Pavement Association State 
Award. 

It is hoped that the project success will 
lead to an uptake of the technology new 
to Australia, where over 56 million tyres 
are disposed of annually.

To encourage the diversion of waste 
away from landfill, Council implemented 
an organic waste food caddy trial, 
with distribution of 5,500 caddies to 
households within the five participating 
suburbs of St Marys, Pasadena, Clapham, 
Eden Hills and Panorama. 
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Exploring sustainable water 
management

Council also invested in a trial of 
permeable asphalt pavement at St Marys 
Sports Association, St Marys.

The crushed rubber permeable 
asphalt car park has been delivered 
in collaboration with the University 
of Melbourne and Tyre Stewardship 
Australia. 

This trial will monitor the performance of 
the asphalt and the benefits of the flow 
of water through to the underlying soils 
and tree roots. 

If successful, it will reduce stormwater 
runoff, provide healthier tree canopies 
and reduce pedestrian trip hazards.  

Not wasting energy 

In addition to the permeable asphalt 
trial, Council installed a geothermal pipe 
system.

The system may generate up to 5kW of 
power, providing hot water to the new 
clubrooms at St Marys Sports Association.

The trial complements our upgrade to 
4,980 residential street lights to new LED 
lightbulb technology. 

The new LEDs provide residents and 
businesses more directional light 
and less back spill, while reducing 
our greenhouse gas emissions by 
approximately 605 tonnes a year.

From an initial investment of $2.2 
million, we are anticipating electricity, 
maintenance and tariff savings annually 
of approximately $293,000. 

Preparing for a changing climate

We continued our commitment to the 
Resilient South program, which aims to 
strengthen southern Adelaide from the 
impact of climate change.  

The collaboration between the cities 
of Mitcham, Marion, Onkaparinga and 
Holdfast Bay allowed us to partner with 
the Australian Red Cross to deliver an 
exciting new project.

Climate Ready Communities trained over 
60 community members to get prepared 
for intensified extreme events under 
climate change. 

The program delivered nine community 
events designed to educate residents 
and businesses on what they can do to 
manage the impacts of climate change.

Supporting Our Community

New clubrooms including a kitchen, 
canteen, bar, community meeting rooms 
and  public toilets at St Marys Park were 
completed and the refurbishing of four 
female friendly changes rooms, two 
umpires change rooms and a first aid 
room were commenced.  These new 
clubrooms and facilities will provide a 
modern, functional and safe amenity for 
the St Marys Sports Association and the 
community.

Our Community Transport team of 
volunteers provided 700 trips, for 
residents who cannot drive or catch 
the bus, to attend medical or other 
appointments, and 14,000 Community 
Bus seats were filled during the year, 
enabling transport disadvantaged 
residents to continue accessing their 
favourite local shops and libraries.

Council awarded approximately $51,000 
in grants to community groups and 
projects who are making a positive 
contribution to the community through 
a wide range of local cultural, social 
and recreational initiatives and $10,000 
in grants to 82 individuals for sporting, 
academic and arts achievements.

We also supported the formation of 
the Mitcham Library Youth Reference 
Group (MLYRG), comprising of 16 Year 
8-12 students from four local secondary 
schools, who will provide ideas for 
engaging with young people and 
activating spaces in and around the 
Mitcham Library.

Council also celebrated the official 
opening of the upgraded Mitcham 
Reserve playground, one of three 
playgrounds upgraded this year together 
with Netherby Reserve and Frances Street 
playgrounds.

Connecting our suburbs

We built new footpaths along Willora 
Road, Eden Hills, Vaucluse Crescent, 
Bellevue Heights, Cooper Street, Eden 
Hills and Boronia Avenue, Coromandel 
Valley and renewed over 60 footpaths 
across the city.

The Cross Road to Belair Road section 
of the City-to-Belair bike route was 
completed and now joins with portions 
of the bikeway in our neighbouring City 
of Unley. Further bikeway extensions will 
be delivered to link Angas Road to Price 
Avenue.

Council completed the Pony Ridge trail 
upgrade to improve the safety of this 
1 km trail between Brown Hill Creek and 
Belair Recreation Park. The trail forms 
part of the State Government’s Yurrebilla 
Trail and provides an important off-road 
link between the hills and plains.

Celebrating together

We enjoyed joining with the community 
at many very well attended events, 
bringing people together in celebration 
throughout the year, including;

• Carols at Kingswood Oval

• Australia Day celebrations

• citizenship ceremonies

• family fun days 

• youth events

• civic receptions

Youth Week boasted a popular skate 
competition and a roller skate disco, 
and our library also ran many events 
and programs during the year with over 
20,000 people attending.

A Reconciliation Week Flag Raising 
Ceremony was held at the Civic Centre 
and attended by representatives of 
Blackwood Reconciliation Group, 
indigenous artists Kunyi June-Anne and 
Yartiji McInerney, inaugural Blackwood 
Reconciliation Group Chairperson Di 
Dent, SA Police Department, Mayor, 
Elected Members and staff. 

We also enjoyed a Welcome to Country in 
May, where we celebrated the unveiling 
of the Aboriginal Flag in the Council 
Chambers.  

Efficiencies through innovation

Our investment in technology provided 
us with an opportunity to deliver savings 
for the benefit of our customers and the 
community. 

Our ‘Section 7 Search’ automation 
involved the digitising of records 
and constructing an automated 
search engine to provide customers 
(predominantly conveyancers) the 
ability to obtain a section 7 report almost 
instantaneously.  

The implementation of this project has 
improved accuracy, consistency and 
timeliness, resulted in ongoing savings 
of $120,000 and demonstrating what 
can be achieved through an investment 
in the right technology.

MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Netherby Reserve Playground

Making safer workplaces

We are pleased to have received the 
2018 Local Government Association 
Mutual Liability Scheme Risk 
Management Major Award for our 
innovative solution to overcome a 
longstanding issue at the Lynton Green 
Organics Drop Off Facility.

The ‘Transfer Edge Protection Gates’ 
were designed by a collaborative 
staff initiative to provide safety for the 
community and our workers without 
reducing the efficiency of the site to 
process the organic material.

It is testament to the commitment from 
the Council staff to deliver effective and 
innovative outcomes for its community.

Looking forward to 2019/20

As we commence the new year, Council 
will continue to increase its investment 
in footpaths and waterways, and other 
new services to adapt to the impacts of a 
changing climate (such as planting more 
trees, flood proofing and providing more 
drinking fountains).

We are excited to progress our review 
of the Strategic Management Plan 
and development of our Growth 
Development Plan Amendment, with 
both plans setting our future direction 
and informing actions that Council will 
implement over the next four years.

We are also excited about a commitment 
from the Federal Government of $5 
million to progress the Blackwood 
Community Hub Project. 

In presenting the 2018/19 Annual 
Report, we wish to acknowledge and 
thank the staff who were responsible 
for delivering the achievements for the 
year. Their work gives the Council and the 
community a solid foundation on which 
to build the future.

We’d also like to recognise and thank 
our Mitcham volunteers. Many of our 
programs would not be able to continue 
without their support. Their contribution 
to the community is greatly appreciated.
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OUR 
ELECTED 
MEMBERS

BABBAGE WARD COUNCILLORS
Dave  

Munro 
Yvonne  

Todd

MAYOR
Heather 

Holmes-Ross

GAULT WARD COUNCILLORS
Jasmine 

Berry
Stephen  

Fisher

BOORMAN WARD COUNCILLORS
Adriana  

Christopoulos
Andrew 

 Tilley

Mitcham trail
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OVERTON WARD COUNCILLORS
John  

Sanderson
Katarina 

Steele

THE PARK WARD COUNCILLORS
Corin 

McCarthy
Jane  

Bange

CRAIGBURN WARD COUNCILLORS
Darren 
Kruse

Karen  
Hockley

Lindy  
Taeuber

Clarence 
Gardens

Cumberland
Park

Melrose
Park

Daw
Park

Bedford
Park

St Marys

Pasadena Panorama
Lynton

Colonel
Light

Gardens
Clapham

Lower
Mitcham

Westbourne
Park

Hawthorn Urrbrae

Leawood 
Gardens

Crafers
West

Belair

Glenalta

Hawthorndene

Upper
Sturt

Coromandel 
Valley

Craigburn
Farm

Blackwood

Eden Hills

Bellevue
Heights

Kingswood

Torrens
Park

Netherby

Springfield

Mitcham Brownhill
Creek

OVERTON
GAULT

BOORMAN

THE PARK

CRAIGBURN

BABBAGE
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AWARDS 
AND RECOGNITION
The City of Mitcham received a number of awards in recognition of organisational success across 
several areas, including innovative sustainable practices and excellence in safety management. The 
awards included:

Award Received for

Institute of Public Works Engineering Australasia –Sustainable 
Infrastructure Award

Mitcham Memorial Library and Brownhill Creek Project

Parks and Leisure Australia - Commendation Mitcham Memorial Library and Brownhill Creek Project

Australian Asphalt Pavement Association - State Award 
for Innovation

Crumb tyre rubber trial (road) at Stanlake Avenue, St Marys 
completed in conjunction with Top Coat Asphalt and Tyre 
Stewardship Australia

Workers Compensation Scheme, Local Government Association 
of South Australia - Risk Management Major Award

Design of the Lynton Depot gates

Workers Compensation Scheme, Local Government Association 
of South Australia - Return to Work Best Practice Major Award

Best practice for formative pruning and return to work initiative

Stormwater South Australia – Excellence in Research & 
Innovation Award

Today’s Research. Tomorrow’s Prosperity and Wellbeing – Research 
into Water Sensitive Urban Design. 

Stormwater Australia – Excellence in Research & Innovation - 
Highly Commended 

Today’s Research. Tomorrow’s Prosperity and Wellbeing – Research 
into Water Sensitive Urban Design. 

Formative Pruning
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GRANTS AWARDED
The City of Mitcham awarded 
a total of $61,578 to 
individuals and groups who 
contributed to community 
public art, connections, events, 
gardens, mental and physical 
wellbeing or competed in 
national or international 
sporting competitions. 

The Maggy Ragless grant 
honours the work of the 
late Maggy Ragless, City of 
Mitcham’s historian from 
1986 until 2012. It seeks 
to encourage and support 
original research or projects 
which will inform and educate 
the community about the City 
of Mitcham’s local history and 
heritage.

Individual achievement grants 
were awarded to recognise 
individual sporting, academic, 
and arts achievements.

The City of Mitcham would 
like to congratulate its 
grant recipients for their 
achievements and thank them 
for their valued contribution to 
the Mitcham community. 

Community Grant Awarded $

Community Art / Public Art 2,632

Anglican Parish of St Mary's 1,670

Gallery One 747

Serpentine Neighbours 215

Community Connections 4,000

Blackwood Action Group 500

Croatian Community Council of South Australia Incorporated 2,500

The Blackwood & District War Memorial Hall Incorporated 1,000

Community Events 12,260

Blackwood Action Group 2,400

Edwardstown Baptist Church (EBC) 2,500

Blackwood Circle of Friends 2,500

Splash Arts Inc 2,360

Blackwood Markets - Spring Market 2,500

Community Gardens or Garden 2,500

The Monastery Community Garden 2,500

Community Physical or Emotional Health and Wellbeing 5,686

Blackwood Hills SA Incorporated 2,500

Caring Friends 1,686

Hawthorn Masonic Trust Inc. 1,000

Rotary Club of Mitcham 500

Special Community Event 10,000

Gaelic Football & Hurling Association of South Australia (GFHASA) 5,000

Ultra Runners SA 5,000

Special Community Projects 12,500

Kate Amelia Hillgrove (Samba Sirens) 5,000

Friends of Urrbrae Wetland 5,000

Cancer Care Centre Inc 2,500

Maggy Ragless Grant 2,000

Individual Achievement Grants 10,000

Sporting, Academic and Arts  
achievement grants awarded to 82 Individuals

10,000

Total Grants Awarded 61,578
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Brownhill Creek, Soldiers Memorial Gardens, Hawthorn

OUR  
PERFORMANCE
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PERFORMANCE 
AGAINST 
COUNCIL’S 
STRATEGIC 
GOALS AND 
OBJECTIVES
The delivery of the projects and services in the 2018/19 Annual 
Business Plan contributes to the achievement of Council’s 
community outcomes documented in the Strategic Management 
Plan goals and objectives. Performance in delivering our Annual 
Business Plan initiatives together with performance against our 
key performance indicators are provided in this section and are 
grouped against the strategic goals and objectives.
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ACCESSIBLE AND CONNECTED COMMUNITY
HIGHLIGHTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
The Community Transport team of 
volunteers provided more than 700 
one-way trips to medical or other 
appointments for residents who cannot 
drive or catch the bus. 

New Flinders Drive egresses completed 
at Wentworth Street and Rupert Avenue. 

Commenced delivery of Fund My 
Neighbourhood Projects including 
Avenue Road, Clarence Gardens 
and Mortlock Park, Colonel Light 
Gardens toilets. 

Upgrades to Price Memorial Oval change 
rooms and renewal of storage and 
public toilets commenced.

Transitioned to the new single set of 
Aged Care Quality Standards within 
Community Wellbeing services, 
cementing the position of service 
recipients at the heart of services that 
enable dignity and choice.

A two-year Meningococcal B Trial Study 
was undertaken of over 4,500 students 
across three year levels in 10 schools. 

Implemented the outsourced 
Community Wellbeing service contract 
with Southern Cross Care.

Community Consultation undertaken 
for the Blackwood Community Hub and 
Waite Street Reserve Project.

Candidate Information Sessions and 
Meet the Candidate Information Session 
held across September and August.

Community Bus and Volunteers
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1. ACCESSIBLE AND  
CONNECTED COMMUNITY
We are an accessible connected and engaged community.

1.1 TRANSPORT NETWORK
Our community is connected to places through a people friendly transport, cycling and pedestrian 
network which offers accessible, integrated and efficient transport options.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Percentage of City – Belair Bike Route Project completed by 30 June 2019. 50%

Percentage of 2018/19 Integrated Transport Plan implemented by 30 June 2019. 80%

Percentage of stage three implementation of the Sturt Linear Trail from the Institute Building on Main Road, 
Coromandel Valley to Coromandel Parade including three bridges implemented by 30 June 2019.

0%

Percentage of 2018/19 Way2Go Program implemented by 30 June 2019. 0%

Percentage of Randell Park and Pony Ridge trails completed by 30 June 2019. 50%

Percentage contribution to feasibility study of Western Bypass completed by 30 June 2019. 90%

Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of new bridge construction works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 0%

Percentage of Bridge replacement works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 40%

Percentage of Bus Shelter replacement works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage of Car Park renewal works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 80%

Percentage of Footpath replacement works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 90%

Percentage new Footpath construction works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage of footpath maintenance customer requests completed within schedule timeframe. 100% 100%

Percentage of Kerb and Water table Renewal works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Reduce percentage of valid parking complaints received around schools, hospitals and shopping 
precincts.

0.5% 0.5%

Percentage of retaining wall works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 0%

Percentage of Road 2 Recovery program completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage of road maintenance customer requests completed by undertaking repairs or referral on 
for replacement

100% 80%

Percentage of road faults (potholes) repaired in accord with maintenance program and risk factors 100% 100%

Percentage of road replacement works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage of road seal and pavement replacement works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage Road Seal - Preservation works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage of road seal, pavement & kerb & watertable renewal works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Statistic Result

Number of outstanding requests as per Traffic Priorities Report yet to be processed 40
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1.2 ACCESSIBLE SERVICES
Our community has convenient access to a diverse range of information, services, activities 
and facilities.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Percentage installation of public toilet at Mortlock Park completed by 30 June 2019. 50%

Percentage installation of the Fund My Neighbourhood public toilet at Avenue Road completed by 30 June 2019. 80%

Percentage Hillview Reserve Public toilet installation completed 30 June 2019. 20%

Measure Target Result Status

Number of library items borrowed (includes number of items checked out at the Mitcham library 
service and incoming transits checked out at the Mitcham Library Service but not outgoing transits 
to other libraries).

800,000 665,448

Maintain current membership numbers for the Mitcham Library Service 21,000 20,696

Number of library personal computer sessions. 20,000 11,823

Maintain number of people passing through library doors (including toy libraries) at current levels 392,000 329,243

Publish 6 bi monthly editions of the Mitcham Community News annually 6 6

Number of online library resources and catalogues accessed.  180,000 281,690

1.3 QUALITY COMMUNITY SPACES
Our community has access to high quality, vibrant, well serviced places and spaces to meet, 
learn and recreate.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Percentage CC Hood Reserve Toilet installation completed by 30 June 2019. 30%

Percentage Mitcham Memorial Library building redevelopment completed by 30 June 2019. 100%

Percentage upgrade of the St Marys Sports Association Clubrooms completed by 30 June 2019. 100%

Percentage of Hewett Reserve Redevelopment completed by 30 June 2019. 50%

Percentage of Price Memorial Works completed by 30 June 2019. 20%

Percentage Waite Street Reserve Landscape Concept Plan completed by 30 June 2019. 100%

Measure Target Result Status

Percentage building renewal works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 74%

Percentage of scheduled property maintenance program completed each quarter 90% 100%

Percentage Sports Facilities & Infrastructure - Sports Ovals renewal works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage Sports Facilities & Infrastructure - Tennis Court renewal works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 95%

Percentage of sports lighting projects completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 60%

Percentage of sports oval renewal projects completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Number of tennis court renewals projects completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 95%

Number of meetings with sporting lease and license holders including workshops or training during 
the year (target to meeting with half of the 49 clubs during the year).

25 49
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1.3 QUALITY COMMUNITY SPACES
Action Result Status

Increase the budget for community building contributions 0%

Percentage community facility grants have been acquitted. 0%

Statistic Result

Number of requests received in relation to Reactive Maintenance services for Council Buildings including public toilets, 
community centres and Council's operational buildings.

775

1.4 SUPPORTED COMMUNITY
Our community is strong, healthy, resilient and is supported in building connections amongst 
people, pursuing pathways to lifelong learning and personal growth.

PERFORMANCE
Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of Community Wellbeing service targets achieve in accord with Commonwealth and 
State funding agreements

100% 98%

Percentage of food businesses identified to have critical or major issues followed-up through 
legislative means, including food complaints inspections.

100% 100%

Number of vaccines administered 4200 4659

Number of unique residents provided with Community Wellbeing support for the financial year. 1400 1260

Number of the nine secondary schools located within the Mitcham area where key staff and student 
representatives have been engaged on youth discussions.

9 9

Action Result Status

Progress on the implementation of the Regional Health Plan 100%

1.5 ENGAGED COMMUNITY
Our community is encouraged and supported to have a voice and to participate in a meaningful 
way to shape our City.

PERFORMANCE
Statistic Result

Total number of volunteers as at 30 June 2019. 370
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Public Art,  
Torrens Park Pump Station

SUSTAINABLE CITY 
HIGHLIGHTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
De-silting of Urrbrae wetlands to ensure 
stormwater quality and stormwater 
detention capacity is maintained. 

We completed the waste audit with 
RAWTEC.

Transferred to new waste collector Veolia 
for all our commercial waste at Lynton.
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2. SUSTAINABLE CITY
We continually sustain and improve our natural and built 
environments for today’s and future generations.

2.2 CLEAN ENERGY
Our greenhouse gas emissions are minimised and our uptake of clean and renewable energy 
technologies is maximised.

PERFORMANCE
Statistic Result

Tonnes of greenhouse gas emissions. 865

ADDITIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS
Council achieved an 8% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from the previous year.

2.3 WATER CONSERVATION
Water sensitive urban design, and the use of alternative water sources to keep our natural and built 
environment green, is maximised.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Desilting of Urrbrae Wetlands 100%

Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of re-budgeted new Water Sensitive Urban Design Stormwater projects completed by 
30 June 2019.

100% 86%

2.4 WASTE MINIMISATION
Responsible consumption and conservation of natural resources and minimisation of waste through 
avoidance, reuse, recycling and composting is encouraged.

PERFORMANCE
Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of putrescible domestic waste (blue) bins collected each week. 100% 99.9%

Percentage of Customer Requests regarding illegally dumped rubbish responded to within 
two weeks.

100% 100%

Percentage of waste diverted from landfill 70% 56%

Percentage Trial Roll-out of Free Food Organics Collection System implemented. 100% 100%
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2.5 RESILIENCE TO CLIMATE CHANGE
Our community is resilient to climate change and the impacts of natural disasters.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Percentage of Brown Hill Creek Soldiers Memorial Gardens Improvements Project completed by 30 June 2019. 100%

Percentage of 2018/19 program for Brownhill Keswick Creek Project completed by 30 June 2019. 100%

Percentage of 2018/19 program for upgrade of Brown Hill Creek Channel and Landscaping outside the channel 
at Soldiers Memorial Gardens completed by 30 June 2019.

100%

Measure Target Result Status

Percentage compliance with bushfire prevention legislation annually from the 1,200 targeted  
high-risk bushfire properties audited.

100% 100%

Percentage of Fire Breaks on Council reserves brush cut or slashed before the fire danger season. 100% 100%

Blackwood Park, Craigburn Farm
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2.6 SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
Developments in our City are sustainable and complement the natural environment.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Percentage Blackwood District Centre Planning Project delivered by 30 June 2019. 80%

Statistic Result

Number of development applications submitted to the Development Assessment or Council Assessment Panels 
for decision.

58

Number of development applications lodged with Council for assessment. 1,263
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DYNAMIC AND PROSPEROUS ECONOMY  
HIGHLIGHTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
Spatial Vision was endorsed by Council.

Ministerial authorisation to commence 
the Growth Precincts Development 
Plan Amendment and investigations 
commenced.

Jointly held the Edwardstown 
Employment Precinct Forum with the City 
of Marion

First Sponsorship Prospectus launched 
for businesses and agencies to become a 
sponsor of the Mitcham Memorial Library. 

Implementation of DACO (Dog and Cat 
Online) centralised system in accordance 
with Legislative requirements 
was completed.

Commenced delivery of Fund My 
Neighbourhood projects, including St 
Marys Sports Association Clubrooms and 
Hewett Oval Clubrooms.

Joint economic development event 
Shaping the Future of Mitcham was 
held in collaboration with Southern 
Business Connections.

Community shed mosaic
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3. DYNAMIC AND PROSPEROUS ECONOMY
Our community is economically strong and competitive.

3.1 VIBRANT PLACES
We have attractive and vibrant precincts, places and spaces, supported by a variety of quality 
community facilities and retail, commercial and residential development.

PERFORMANCE
Project Target Result Status

Percentage Year 1 of the City Image Project implemented by 30 June 2019. 100% 48%

Percentage Blackwood Hub concept plans completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of graffiti removed with 48 hours of it being reported. 100% 100%

Statistic Result

Total number of visitors each quarter to both Blackwood and Cumberland Park Community Centres. 86,141

3.3 COLLABORATIVE ORGANISATION
We have attractive and vibrant precincts, places and spaces, supported by a variety of quality 
community facilities and retail, commercial and residential development.

PERFORMANCE
Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of Fund My Neighbourhood projects completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 20%

3.4 GREAT DESTINATION
We are a destination well regarded by residents and visitors for our heritage, natural environment, 
events, and educational and medical facilities.

PERFORMANCE
Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of all event contributors who were either City of Mitcham residents or providers to the 
City's community.

70% 64%

Number of people attending library programs and events maintained at current levels. 16,000 28,359

Percentage of people responding to an events or public programme survey either “agreeing” or 
“strongly agreeing” when asked the question “The event or programme helped me feel connected 
within my community”

70% N/A

3.5 SUPPORTED BUSINESSES
We foster and support emerging and established businesses, entrepreneurs and innovators to grow 
and prosper.

PERFORMANCE
Action Result Status

Implement an Economic Development (Business) Event. 100%
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VIBRANT AND RICH CULTURE
HIGHLIGHTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
Over 20,000 people participated in 
library events and programs during the 
year. 

Commence preparation/consultation on 
“Enhancing Our Parks for People & Dogs 

Off-Leash” Project as per the Dog and Cat 
Management Plan 2018-23.

Ensured all newly microchipped pets 
were accurately recorded in Dogs and 
Cats Online (DACO).

Developed our Dog and Cat Management 
Plan 18-23 – a five-year plan 
encouraging responsible pet ownership 
and management.

Multicultural Fair 2018
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4. VIBRANT AND RICH CULTURE
We share a vibrant and rich culture and have a strong sense 
of identity.

4.1 SENSE OF PLACE
We have special places, spaces and stories that create a strong sense of place and great experiences 
for our community.

PERFORMANCE
Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of community requests for parks and gardens maintenance assessed and prioritised 
within 10 business days.

100% 100%

Percentage of parks, gardens & open space asset replacement works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 70%

Percentage of new parks gardens and open space asset projects completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 75%

Percentage of Playground Replacement works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 80%

Percentage of new Playground Works completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 25%

4.4 LIVEABLE NEIGHBOURHOODS
We have neighbourhoods that are well designed, sustainable, liveable and complement their 
local character.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Percentage of 2018/19 Animal Management Plan implemented by 30 June 2019. 100%

Percentage Open Space and Playground Strategy completed by 30 June 2019. 0%

Measure Target Result Status

Percentage compliance with dog and cat registration requirements from the 20% of dog and cat 
owners audited annually

100% 100%

Percentage of inspected food businesses complying with regulatory standards (ie no major 
breeches of legislation), including food complaints

100% 100%

Percentage of Environmental Health premises identified to have critical or major issues followed-
up through legislative means, including environmental health complaint inspections.  Premises 
include swimming pools, spas, cooling towers, tattoo parlours, etc.

100% 100%

Percentage of environmental health premises inspected as per required frequency based on risk.  
Premises include swimming pools, spas, cooling towers, tattoo parlours, etc.  Numbers include 
complaints inspections.

90% 100%

Number of precinct visits undertaken by 30 June 2019. 15 15

Percentage of wandering dogs returned to owners 70% 91%

Percentage of 2018/19 actions from Animal Management Plan implemented. 100% 100%

Statistic Result

Number of dog control prosecutions. 0

Number of outstanding public lighting requests yet to be processed 0
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4.5 CITY CHARACTER
The strong characteristics of the City, including the natural and rural landscape character of the 
Mitcham hills, the leafy streetscapes of the plains, and the heritage values of the City, are protected 
and enhanced.

PERFORMANCE
Measure Target Result Status

Percentage of Heritage Plans developed for heritage listed Council buildings as planned. 100% 100%

Loss of new trees planted to be less than five percent. 5% 5%

Percentage of tree maintenance customer requests completed within the scheduled time frames. 100% 85%

Percentage of Tree planting program completed by October. 100% 100%

Percentage of all tree related customer requests for action assessed and prioritised in accord 
with risk standards.

100% 100%
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Temperance Hotel
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CONTINUOUS ORGANISATIONAL IMPROVEMENT 
HIGHLIGHTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
Automation of the ‘Section 7 Search’ 
involved the digitising of records 
and constructing an automated 
search engine to provide customers 
(predominantly conveyancers) 
the ability to obtain a section 7 
report almost instantaneously.  The 
implementation of this project 
improved accuracy, consistency and 
timeliness and resulted in ongoing 
savings of $120,000. 

Delivered a Virtual 360 Degree Tour 
Project which enables customers to 
experience a Mitcham virtual tour of 
our key assets - libraries, community 
centres, historical places, parks and 
reserves.

Created an Events Policy and Planning 
Toolkit to help guide the development 
and delivery of events in the City of 
Mitcham (providing tools to assist in 
the design, planning and delivery of 
events).

Reviewed the Immunisation Service 
and confirmed that it is operating 
efficiently and delivering excellent 
community outcomes (based on analysis 
of available benchmarking data).

Established an efficiency strategy for the 
Individual Achievement Grants resulting 
in significant positive community 
feedback and staff time savings.

A team of City of Mitcham emerging 
leaders participated in the Local 
Government Professionals Management 
Challenge. 

Two staff completed the Flinders 
New Venture Institute ‘Innovation for 
Transformation’ Professional Certificate.

A review of the Information Technology 
(IT) function was undertaken and 
an improved IT business model was 
implemented to leverage the enhanced 
capabilities of the technology system.

Completed Enerven Audit of Public Open 
Space Lighting, resulting in improved 
asset information, outlined priority 
maintenance locations for open space 
lights and reducing emissions. 

Market tested and improved Council’s 
sustainability monitoring system 
which has been expanded to include 
monitoring of street lighting and tariffs, 
and we are exploring inclusion of 
telephone bills.

Implemented the Enterprise Budgeting 
Project resulting in systems, process and 
capability improvements in financial 
management.

Operational Service Reviews 
undertaken and implemented for 
Communications/Marketing and 
Consultation, Customer Service and 
Information Management (Records)

Demonstration of permeable 
pavement car park, St Marys Park
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5. CONTINUOUS 
ORGANISATIONAL IMPROVEMENT
An organisation committed to improving customer experience 
and satisfaction, is efficient and effective in delivering services, a 
responsible financial manager, provides strong leadership, and 
values and develops its people.

5.1 EXCELLENCE IN CUSTOMER SERVICE
Excellence in customer service to better meet customer needs and improve customer experience.

PERFORMANCE
Measure Target Result Status

Number of service area specific customer surveys undertaken during the year. 4 3

Percentage of all calls resolved at first point of contact. 55% 57%

Percentage of customers satisfied with the Customer Service Centre service. 80% 55%

Statistic Result

Number of section 7 search requests received 1,480

5.2 POSITIVE WORKPLACE CULTURE
Positive workplace culture with strong leadership that values people, customers and partners.

PERFORMANCE
Statistic Result

Percentage of managers who are women (including all managers and senior managers and excluding Team Leaders). 39%

Percentage of staff that are women. 47%

Number of work hours lost due to workplace injury. 608.8

Number of staff separations. 50

Percentage of staff retained in the work force. 81%

5.3 EFFICIENT AND EFFECTIVE ORGANISATION
Efficient and effective organisation with a culture of positive change, process improvement and 
productivity gains.

PERFORMANCE
Project Result Status

Percentage Engineering Infrastructure Asset Audit & Revaluation Project completed by 30 June 2019. 100%

Percentage external audit of financial systems and processes project completed by 30 June 2019. 100%

Percentage Independent Insurance Review Project completed by 30 June 2019. 0%
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5.3 EFFICIENT AND EFFECTIVE ORGANISATION
Measure Target Result Status

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Council's ability to generate enough cash over ten years to cover at least 100% replacement of assets.

Between 
95-105%

98%

Asset Sustainability Ratio
Amount spent on replacement of existing assets expressed as a percentage of the amount planned to be 
spent according to the endorsed Asset Management Plans and schedules.

Between 
95-105%

104.6%

Debt repayment term (years)
Forecasted 10 year average of repayment term of debt.

Between 
15-30

25

Interest cover ratio
Forecasted interest coverage ratio not to exceed six percent.

Between 
0-4%

0.8%

Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Articulates how much of Council's annual rates income would be required to repay debt if Council 
were to wind up.

Between 
25-65%

45%

Operating Surplus Ration
Operating result as a percentage of Council’s rates.

Between 
1-4%

2.9%

Number of Business processes defined and/or improved by 30 June 2019. 12 50

Percentage of consumable plant items replacement schedule replaced by 30 June 2019. 100% 100%

Percentage of ICT renewal program complete 100% 80%

Percentage of Major Fleet Renewal Program completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 70%

Percentage of Minor Fleet Renewal Program completed by 30 June 2019. 100% 85%

Number of full-time equivalent staff not to exceed 257. 257 257

Compliance with six monthly reporting responsibilities for funding and standards for safe and high 
quality assistance to residents.

100% 100%

Statistic Result

Number of reviews of Council decisions commenced by 30 June 2019. 9

Number of items considered in confidence at Council meetings under the provisions of S90 of the Local Government Act 
1999.

16

Number of Freedom of Information Applications received. 12

Number of workplace incidents and accidents. 174

Number of employees with annual leave of 40 days or more. 48

Number of employees with Long Service Leave of 120 days or over. 4

Average personal leave days taken per employee. 7.67

Projections and targets for the 2019/20 Financial Year are documented in Council’s 2019/20 Annual Business Plan, Budget and Long 
Term Financial Plan.
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Cumberland Park Community Centre
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OUR 
LEADERSHIP 
AND PEOPLE

City Operations Staff, Melrose Park
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Matthew Pears 
Chief Executive Officer

Finance & Procurement

Property & Facilities Natural Environments
Community  

Development

Environmental Health & 
Community Safety

Engineering People & Culture

Performance &  
Strategy

Development Services City Operations Community Wellbeing
Technology & Customer 

Communications

Business Partner Strategic 
Planning & Projects

Policy Planner Governance

Library Services

Craig Harrison 
Development &  

Community Safety

Wade Reynolds 
Corporate Services & 

Innovation

Daniel Baker 
Engineering &  

Horticulture

Kate O'Neill 
Organisational &  

Community Development
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EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP GROUP
There are five senior executive officers at the City of Mitcham. Their remuneration 
includes; base salary, employer superannuation contribution, a Council supplied 
vehicle, mobile phone and laptop computer. Remuneration ranges as at the 30 June 
are as follows:

Remuneration Band Male Female Total

$200,000 to $220,000 3 1 4

$220,000 to $270,000 0 0 0

$270,000 to $300,000 1 0 1

Total 4 1 5

STAFF
Workforce Profile by Gender and Role

Employee Categories Male Female

Number % Number %

Chief Executive Officer 1 100 0 0

General Managers 3 75 1 25

Group Managers and Managers 7 54 6 46

Team Leaders 13 68 6 32

Employees *135 53 *120 47

Total *159 55 *133 45

* includes casual employees (total of 10 Casuals: 1M;9F)

Management/Staff Ratio

Title Full Time Equivalent 

Management* 18 6% of total staff are managers

Staff 274 94% Staff

* Consists of Chief Executive Officer, General Managers and Managers. Team Leaders are within Staff.

Approximate ratio is 1 Manager for every 15 staff.
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Implementation of Equal 
Employment Programs in 2018/19

This year the City of Mitcham in 
partnership with Flinders University 
launched its first pilot Graduate program.

For the City of Mitcham to continue to 
service the needs of our local community, 
we need appropriate skilled staff, now 
and in the future. This initiative aims to 
support a flexible workforce, respond 
to peaks and troughs in work effort and 
contribute to diversity in the workplace.

Human Resource Management and 
Development Programs

• Through the Local Government 
Professionals Australia, the City of 
Mitcham supported staff to participate 
in:

o The Strategic Management Program, 
aimed to build high-level leadership 
and management skills within a 
local government context, where 
participants learn technical skills 
to manage business functions 
and enhance innovation, strategic 
thinking, business acumen and 
operational excellence.

o The Emerging Leaders Program, 
aimed to enhance self-awareness, 
confidence and knowledge of Local 
Government.

• Council supported our own 
internal Emerging Leaders Program 
culminating in the Management 
Challenge Day. 

• Staff continually attend compliance 
training in Work Health Safety and 
legislative updates.

• A series of workshops were 
undertaken under the Healthy Lifestyle 
Program and Wellness Initiatives.

• A number of staff were supported 
in external studies related to their 
position and ongoing development.

• Focus continued on increasing digital 
literacy with TechOne training provided 
to IT staff and key users across the 
organisation.

• Teams participated in the five-day 
Mental Health Challenge in the 
Workplace put on by the Mental Health 
Coalition of South Australia and the 
Government of South Australia.

• Council has created and opened 
a Wellness Room that also meets 
requirements for a Breastfeeding 
Friendly Workplace.  

• Other training facilitated included:

- A two-day Mental Health First Aid 
training course.

- Communications workshops.

- Dealing with Difficult Customers 
workshops.

- Respectful Behaviours training for 
all staff.

- ICAC Workshops.

- I-Responda Essentials courses.

- Advanced Project Management 
courses.

- Engagement Essentials workshops.

- Engagement Design workshops.

Volunteers

Volunteer numbers at the City of Mitcham 
peaked during the year with an all-time 
high of around 400, including 55 new 
volunteers this year.

The number one reason for people 
wanting to volunteer is to give back to 
their community and they see Council 
as the organisation that supports the 
community through many different 
programs. People are very keen to 
volunteer in the recently refurbished 
Mitcham Memorial Library and many 
help maintain Mitcham’s beautiful green 
spaces and trails as well. The community 
and history centers along with the 
Community Shed also provide a space for 
people to volunteer, connect and support 
each other as do the community service 
programs helping people overcome the 
sense of isolation. Volunteers provide 
information on the history of Mitcham 
and help residents with Justice of the 
Peace services as well as healthy lifestyle 
programs. 

Programs like these would not be able 
to continue without the support of 
volunteers.  

Staff member – Library
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Mayoral Chain, Council Chambers

OUR  
GOVERNANCE
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The City has an active and committed Council that listens to its community and is working to 
enhance the key strategic goal areas of Accessible and Connected Community, Sustainable City, 
Dynamic and Prosperous Economy, Vibrant and Rich Culture and Continuous Organisational 
Improvement in all Council programs and activities.

REPRESENTATION
Comparison of representation quota with councils of similar size*

Elected Members Electors Quota

City of Marion 13 64,219 1: 4,939

City of Playford 16 60,775 1 : 3,798

City of Mitcham 14 48,161 1 : 3,440

City of Campbelltown 11 35,020 1 : 3,183

City of West Torrens 15 41,058 1 : 2,737

* Data Source: Local Government Association. Representation Quota = number of electors divided by number of Councillors (including the Mayor).

Representation Reviews, Submissions and Boundary Change

Under Section 28 of the Local Government 
Act 1999 (the Act) it is possible for 
a prescribed percentage of eligible 
electors to initiate a proposal for the 
making of a proclamation which may 
be referred to the South Australian Local 
Government Grants Commission (the 
Commission) to request Council to 
consider changing Council boundaries 
or to alter the composition of the 
representative structure of Council. 
Submissions by a number of eligible 
electors below the prescribed amount on 
representation can be made to Council’s 
Chief Executive Officer (see inside front 
cover for contact details). 

Regulation 5 of the Local Government 
(General) Regulations 2013 states that 

for the purposes of Section 28(1)(d) 
of the Act, the prescribed percentage 
of eligible electors is 10%. This means 
that a total of 4,816 eligible electors is 
required to make a direct submission to 
the Commission.

Any proposal under Section 28 of the Act 
must set out in general terms, the nature 
of the proposal and comply with any 
requirements of the proposal guidelines. 
Proposal guidelines are published by the 
Commission on their website and are 
publicly available.

Council is required to conduct a review 
of representation at least once in 
every eight years or within a period 
specified by the Electoral Commissioner. 

Council undertook its last review of 
representation in 2013 and must 
undertake its next review by 2021.

Proposed commencement of Council’s 
next Representation Review has been 
scheduled for April 2020. Electors will 
be provided with various opportunities 
to contribute their views and make 
submissions on Council’s representation 
structure. 
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DECISION MAKING 
STRUCTURE AT THE 
CITY OF MITCHAM
Decisions of the Council are made by the 
Full Council, the Statutory Committees 
(which have delegated powers), or by 
staff through delegated authority and/
or authorisations. Informed decision-
making is critical to ensuring that 
decisions are made in the best interests 
of the wider community. Council’s 
formal decision-making structure is 
comprised of:

• Full Council

• Statutory Mandated Committees/
Panels

• Non-Statutory Section 41 Committees

Council is a corporate body and can 
only make decisions by resolution. 
Decisions made by the Council provide 
the direction and authority for Council’s 
ongoing operation. These decisions also 
provide direction to the Chief Executive 
Officer and are implemented by Council 
staff.

The Council Assessment Panel (formally 
the Development Assessment Panel) 
operates separately from Council and has 
its own procedures, terms of reference 
and protocol. It was established by 
Council pursuant to section 83 of the 
Planning, Development and Infrastructure 
Act 2016 (the PDI Act) to consider 
development applications and other 
matters relating to planning and 
development.

Under section 41 of the Act, Council may 
establish committees to: 

• assist it in the performance of its 
functions;

• inquire into, and report on, matters 
within the ambit of its responsibilities;

• provide advice to the Council; and

• exercise, perform or discharge 
delegated powers, functions or duties.

These committees are responsible to and 
report directly to Council. All committees 
make recommendations to Council for 
determination. Council currently has a 
total of six Committees and one panel; 
Audit Committee, CEO Performance 
Review Committee, Grants Committee, 
Audit Committee Independent Member 
Selection Committee, Australia Day 
Awards Selection Committee, the 
Strategic Planning and Development 
Policy Committee and the Council 
Assessment Panel 

Of the six committees, four are 
established under Section 41 of the Act 
whilst the Audit Committee is established 
under Section 126 of the Act and the 
Strategic Planning & Development Policy 
Committee is established under Section 
101A of the Development Act 1993 (the 
DA). 

All meetings of Council and its 
Committees are held at the City of 
Mitcham Civic Centre, 131 Belair Road, 
Torrens Park and are open to the public, 
unless the meeting decides to exclude 
the public for special circumstances 
based on Sections 90(2) and (3) of 
the Act. Meeting dates and times are 
published at the City of Mitcham Civic 
Centre and on Council’s website  
www.mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au. All 
agendas and minutes are available for 
inspection at the City of Mitcham Civic 
Centre, Libraries and on the website 
www.mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au.

Documentation for each meeting 
(agenda with reports, attachments and 
minutes) can be accessed on Council’s 
website  
www.mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au. 
Hard copies of the agendas are made 
available to the public in the Council 
Chambers before the meetings.

Hard copies of the minutes can be 
viewed at the Customer Centre within 
five days of the meeting, without charge.
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Brown Hill and Keswick 

Creeks Stormwater Board
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COUNCIL AND  
COUNCIL MEETINGS
Role of Council

The City of Mitcham is established 
to provide for the government and 
management of its area at the local 
level. Its role is to make informed and 
responsible decisions in the interests of 
its community. In particular, to provide 
and co-ordinate services and facilities 
that will benefit its residents and 
the wider community, to develop its 
community and resources in a socially 
just and ecologically sustainable manner, 
to encourage and develop initiatives 
for improving the quality of life of the 
community, to manage, protect and 
conserve the environment within its 
area, and to represent the interests of 
its community to the wider community. 
In addition, Council’s role is to exercise, 
perform and discharge the powers, 
functions and duties of local government 
under the Act and other applicable 
legislation.

Council membership comprises the 
Mayor and 13 Ward Councillors. The 
Council term is four years with a periodic 
election held on 9 November 2018. 
Results for the City of Mitcham were 
declared on 16 November 2018 by the 
Returning Officer Mick Sherry by way of 
a signed letter to the Chief Executive 
Officer Mr Matthew Pears. Five new 
members were elected including a 
new Mayor.

Meetings

The Council is the main decision-making 
body and holds its meetings on the 
second and fourth Tuesday of each 
month except December when it met on 
the second Tuesday and January when it 
met on the last Tuesday only.

In 2018/19 Council met at 7pm on 
the second and fourth Tuesday of 
each month except on the following 
occasions:

• July 2018 when it met on the fifth 
Tuesday (Special Full Council Meeting) 
in addition to the second and fourth 
Tuesday.

• September 2018 when it met on the 
second Tuesday only.

• October 2018 when it met on the 
second Tuesday only 

• January 2019 when it met on the 
fourth Tuesday and fifth Tuesday 
(Special Full Council Meeting)

• April 2019 when it met on the third 
Tuesday (Special Council Meeting) 
in addition to the second and fourth 
Tuesday.

Members of the community were 
welcome to attend, except where 
matters were discussed “in confidence” 
and the public was excluded.

The Council held a total of 22 meetings. The attendance record is below: 

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mayor Heather Homes-Ross1 15 14

Mayor Glenn Spear2 7 7

Councillor Andrew Tilley 22 20

Councillor Adriana Christopoulos 22 19

Councillor Corin McCarthy3 15 14

Councillor Darren Kruse4 15 14

Councillor David Munro 22 22

Councillor Jane Bange 22 20

Councillor Jasmine Berry5 15 13

Councillor John Sanderson 22 17

Councillor John Wilson 7 7

Councillor Karen Hockley 22 22

Councillor Katarina Steele6 15 15

Councillor Lindy Taeuber 22 21

Councillor Nicholas Economos7 7 5

Councillor Stephen Fisher 22 21

Councillor Tim Hein8 7 5

Councillor Yvonne Todd 22 21

1 Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross was elected to the position on 16 November 2018
2 Mayor Glenn Spear was not re-elected in the 9 November 2018 Local Government Elections
3 Cr Corin McCarthy was elected to the position on 16 November 2018
4 Cr Darren Kruse was elected to the position on 16 November 2018
5 Cr Jasmine Berry was elected to the position on 16 November 2018
6 Cr Katarina Steele was elected to the position on 16 November 2018
7 Cr Nicholas Economos was not re-elected in the 9 November 2018 Local Government Elections
8 Cr Tim Hein did not stand for re-election in the 9 November 2018 Local Government Elections
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COUNCIL  
ASSESSMENT 
PANEL 
The Council Assessment Panel (CAP) was established on 13 June 2017 following the 
commencement of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016. The CAP 
came into operation on 1 October 2017 and assumed the operations of the former 
Development Assessment Panel.

The role of the Council Assessment Panel is to make decisions to either approve or 
refuse certain types of development applications.

The Council Assessment Panel has a total of five members, and one deputy member. 
Of the five members, there is one Elected Member of the Council, and four members 
that are independent of the Council. The Council selected the independent members 
through an Expression of Interest process that was open to members of the public.

Council Assessment Panel Meetings

The Council Assessment Panel met nine times during 2018/19. These meetings were 
held on the first Thursday of each month commencing July 2018 (except in January and 
September 2018 and June 2019).

The members and their attendance record is below:

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mr David Billington (Presiding Member) 10 10

Mr Andrew Tilley (Council Member) 10 8

Ms Andreea Caddy (Independent Member)9 9 8

Mr Michael Osborn (Independent Member) 10 10

Mr Steve Hooper (Independent Member) 10 9

Cr Yvonne Todd (Deputy Council Member) 8 8

9 Andrea Caddy resigned from the Council Assessment Panel on 2 May 2019

Please note: Ms Yvonne Todd (Council Member) is a proxy member for Mr Andrew Tilley.  
Ms Todd was not required to attend as a proxy during the financial year period.
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COMMITTEES OF 
COUNCIL
The Council, pursuant to Section 41 of the 
Local Government Act 1999, may establish 
committees to:

• Assist the Council in the performance 
of its functions;

• Inquire into and report to the Council 
on matters within the ambit of the 
Council’s responsibilities;

• Provide advice to the Council; and

• Exercise, perform or discharge 
delegated powers, functions or duties.

When establishing a committee, the 
Council determines the reporting and 
other accountability requirements that 
are to apply to the committee.

There are two types of Committee; 

(1) Prescribed; and 

(2) Other

STATUTORY COMMITTEES

Committees are prescribed by Determination 6 of 2018 The Remuneration Tribunal 
Determination of Allowances for Members of Local Government Councils.

Council received advice and recommendations from three prescribed committees. Their 
role during the 2018/19 period is set out below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists Council in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating to 
accounting, audit, legislative compliance (eg annual financial statements), financial 
and operational risk management (eg strategic management plans or annual business 
plans), ensuring effective communication between Council and management and 
the external Auditor, and reviewing the adequacy of internal controls, reporting and 
practices of the Council on a regular basis.

The Committee is an advisory committee to Council and does not enjoy any delegated 
powers other than the power to adopt its own Minutes.

Membership of the Committee consisted of five members; two Elected Members and 
three independent members with relevant experience in professions such as, but not 
limited to, accounting, audit, financial, legal, risk management and governance.

The Audit Committee met six times during 2018/19. The members and their attendance 
record is below:

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mr Tim Muhlhausler (Presiding Member) 6 6

Councillor Darren Kruse10 (Council Member) 2 1

Councillor John Sanderson11 (Council Member - 
Proxy)

3 3

Councillor Karen Hockley12 (Council Member) 4 1

Councillor Stephen Fisher13 (Council Member) 3 2 

Mr Gary Button14 (Independent Member) 5 5

Mr Todd Davies  (Independent Member) 6 6

10 Cr Darren Kruse was elected as an Elected Member on 12 February 2019
11 Cr John Sanderson was elected as a proxy effective from 28 May 2019
12 Cr Karen Hockley’s term of office expired 12 February 2019 and she did not seek reappointment
13 Cr Stephen Fisher attended the 4 December 2018 meeting as a proxy and was elected as an Elected 

Member on 12 February 2019
14 Mr Gary Button resigned from the Audit Committee on 28 February 2019

In addition to its legislative role, the Committee undertook the following:

• Considered reports in relation to the management and reporting of Council’s 
financial assets, activities, risks and the performance of contracts entered into by 
Council;

• Considered reports in relation to financial and accounting policies; and

• Monitored and reviewed the performance of Council’s Risk Management Program.
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Strategic Planning and 
Development Policy Committee

The Strategic Planning and Development 
Policy Committee assists Council in 
undertaking strategic planning and 
monitoring and provides advice in 
relation to:

• the extent to which the Council’s 
strategic planning and development 
polices accord with the State Planning 
Strategy;

• strategic planning and development 
policy issues for Strategic Directions 
Report and Development Plan 
Amendments.

All members of Council were deemed 
to be members of the Committee which 
met on an as-needs basis.

The Strategic Planning and Development Policy Committee met 2 times during 
2018/19. The two meetings were conducted before the Council Elections in November 
2018 and thus, newly Elected Members have not been recorded. The attendance record 
is below:

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mayor Glenn Spear 2 1

Councillor Adriana Christopoulos 2 1

Councillor Andrew Tilley 2 2

Councillor David Munro 2 2

Councillor Jane Bange 2 0

Councillor John Sanderson 2 2

Councillor John Wilson 2 2

Councillor Karen Hockley 2 2

Councillor Lindy Taeuber 2 1

Councillor Nicholas Economos 2 1

Councillor Stephen Fisher 2 2

Councillor Tim Hein 2 1

Councillor Yvonne Todd 2 2

Council Chambers
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NON - STATUTORY COMMITTEES

Audit Committee Independent Member Selection Committee

The Audit Committee Independent Member Selection Committee was established 
and endorsed by the Full Council on 26 January 2019 under Section 41 of the Local 
Government Act 1999 with delegated authority under Section 44(2)(a) of that Act for the 
purposes of shortlisting, interviewing and determining the independent members of 
the Audit Committee.

The Committee provides advice to Full Council on the suitably of applicants and has the 
power to determine and recommend to Full Council the most appropriate candidates.

Membership of the Committee includes the Mayor, Executive Officer, the Audit 
Committee Independent Presiding Member or an alternative if the former has a 
conflict.

The Committee met twice in the 2018/19 financial year. The attendance record is 
shown below:

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mayor Heather Holmes Ross 2 2

Tim Muhlhausler 2 2

Executive Officer 2 2

Australia Day Awards Selection Committee

The Australia Day Awards Selection Committee was established and endorsed by 
the Full Council on 27 November 2018 under Section 41 of the Local Government Act 
1999 with delegated authority under Section 44(2)(a) of that Act for the purposes of 
determining the winner(s) of the Australia Day Awards in the following categories:

• Citizen of the year;

• Young citizen of the year; and

• Community Event of the year.

Membership of the Committee provides for the Mayor, a minimum of three and 
a maximum of five Elected Members, one community member being a previous 
Citizen of the Year Award Winner and the person occupying the position of Manager 
Community Development or an equivalent position.

The Committee met once on Monday, 10 December 2018 during the 2018/19 financial 
year. The record attendance is shown below:

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mayor Heather Holmes Ross 1 1

Councillor Corin McCarthy 1 1

Councillor Katarina Steele 1 1

Councillor Yvonne Todd 1 1

Mrs Helen Scarborough 1 1

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
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CEO Performance Review Committee

The CEO Performance Review Committee undertakes the annual performance review 
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Committee comprised a panel of five members; the 
Mayor who chairs the meetings and four Elected Members. 

The role of the Committee is to establish key performance objectives for the Chief 
Executive Officer, to appraise his actual performance against those objectives and to 
carry out a review of his salary.

The CEO Performance Review Committee met three times during 2018/19. The 
attendance record is below:

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross 3 2

Councillor Corin McCarthy 3 3

Councillor David Munro 3 3

Councillor John Sanderson15 3 0

Councillor Yvonne Todd 3 3

15 Councillor John Sanderson was on approved leave of absence for all three meetings

Community Development Grants Committee16 

The Community Development Grants Committee has delegated authority under section 
44(2)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999 to assess applications under the Community 
Development Grants Policy and to allocate funds as assigned in the annual budget to 
eligible community groups and organisations in accordance with the Selection Criteria.

Membership of the Committee consisted of the Mayor and four Elected Members.

There were no meetings conducted in the 2018/19 financial year.

Grants Committee

The Grants Committee was established and endorsed by the Full Council on 27 
November 2018 under Section 41 of the Local Government Act 1999 with delegated 
authority under Section 44(2)(a) of that Act for the purposes of allocating funds to 
eligible community groups and organisations.

The Committee is charged with assessing grant applications, allocation of funds within 
the Grants budget limit and receiving reports in relation to grants made under various 
programs of the Council.

Membership of the Committee is made up of the Mayor and up to a maximum of five 
other Elected Members.

The Grants Committee met once during the 2018/19 financial year. The attendance 
record is shown below:

Membership
Number of Meetings

Eligible Attended

Mayor Heather Holmes Ross 1 1

Councillor Corin McCarthy 1 1

Councillor Jane Bange 1 1

Councillor John Sanderson 1 1

Councillor Katarina Steele 1 1

Councillor Lindy Taeuber 1 1

16 The Community Development Grants Committee was re-established as the Grants Committee by 
resolution of the Full Council on 27 November 2018 pursuant to Section 41 of the Local Government 
Act 1999 – previously, the Committee was not a Section 41 Committee.

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
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DESIGNATED 
AND INFORMAL 
GATHERINGS
Informal gatherings are held in 
accord with section 90(8) of the Local 
Government Act 1999 and Council’s 
Informal Gathering Policy 

Designated Informal Gatherings involve 
events organised and conducted by or on 
behalf of the Council or Chief Executive 
Officer to which members of the Council 
or Council Committee (as the case may 
be) have been invited and that involves 
discussion of a matter that is, or is 
intended to be, part of the agenda for a 
formal meeting of the Council or Council 
Committee.

Informal gatherings are generally held 
on the third Tuesday of each month and 
the fourth Tuesday of each month prior 
to the Council Meeting. Information 
regarding Council’s briefings is available 
on Council’s website  
www.mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au. 

Informal gatherings are not required to 
be open to the public provided that a 
matter which would ordinarily form part 
of the agenda for a formal meeting of 
the Council or Council Committee is not 
dealt with In such a way as to obtain, 
or effectively obtain, a decision on the 
matter outside a formally constituted 
meeting of the Council or Council 
Committee. This is supported by the 
Council’s Informal Gathering Policy.

There were 23 public Designated 
Informal Gatherings and four of those 
were closed to the public as follows:

Date Gathering

3 Jul 18 Spatial Vision and Local Area Planning Project – Special Character 
Areas and (Unfunded) Public Realm infrastructure Projects

16 Jul 18 Redevelopment of the Mitcham Memorial Library – Site Tour

17 Jul 18 Priority Projects, Business Case – Accounts Payable and operational 
review of financial systems

24 Jul 18 Operational Update

31 Jul 18 Mitcham Memorial Library Redevelopment – Market response to 
tenders (Public Excluded)

21 Aug 18 Planning reforms – Draft State Planning Policies for South Australia, 
Youth Plan and Community Centres

28 Aug 18 Operational Update

9 Oct 18 Operational Update

29 Jan 19 Strategic Management Plan / Annual Business Plan, Appointments 
to various boards / committees

5 Feb 19 Annual Business Plan and Budget – Strategic Context, Elected 
Member communication channels

9 Feb 19 Spatial Vision / Planning Report, Public Realm themes & typologies

19 Feb 19 Blackwood District Centre / Annual Business Plan and Budget – 
prioritising service requests

5 Mar 19 Stormwater Management / Annual Business Plan & Budget – 
Service Requests & Budget Levers

12 Mar 19 Operational Update

19 Mar 19 Annual Business Plan & Budget – Draft Capital Program & Budget 
Levers / Waste & Recycling (part in confidence at end) 
(Public excluded)

26 Mar 19 LGA Presentation by LGA Chief Executive Officer

9 Apr 19 Operational Update

16 Apr 19 East Waste – Confidential / Annual Business Plan and Budget 
(Public Excluded)

7 May 19 Springbank / Daws / Goodwood Road Intersection Community 
Development Overview

21 May 19 Brighton Parade Post Implementation Review 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2019 – Presentation by Kelledy Jones 
Lawyers

4 Jun 19 Public Real, Design Themes Workshop
Property Projects and Leases
Darlington Project – Public Art
Annual Business plan and Budget – Community Consultation 
Results and Budget Upgrade
(Public Excluded)

11 Jun 19 Operational Update

18 Jun 19 Community Centres – Long Term Vision Engineering and 
Horticulture Policies Capital Program
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DELEGATIONS TO CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
The Council has provided the Chief 
Executive Officer with delegated 
authority to make decisions on a number 
of specified administrative and policy 
matters. The Council reviews these 
delegations annually. The Chief Executive 
Officer is able to sub-delegate to other 
officers of Council as he sees fit.

In keeping with legislative requirements, 
Council determines:

• the policies to be applied by the 
Council in exercising its discretionary 
powers

• the type, range and scope of projects 
to be undertaken by the Council

• the resources which are to be made 
available to undertake such works and 
services.

Multicultural Fair 2018
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COUNCIL SUBSIDIARIES
Regional Subsidiaries allow more than 
one Council to join together to perform 
a particular function, beneficial to all 
its members. The City of Mitcham has 
interests in three regional subsidiary 
committees pursuant to section 43 of the 
Local Government Act 1999:

• Centennial Park Cemetery Authority

• Eastern Waste Management Authority

• Brown Hill Keswick Creeks Stormwater 
Board

Centennial Park Cemetery 
Authority

Centennial Park Cemetery Authority 
is a body corporate. The property of 
the Authority is held on behalf of two 
constituent owner Councils, the City 
of Mitcham and the City of Unley. A 
Board of Management consisting of 
two Councillors from each Council and 
three independent members (chosen 
for their specific areas of expertise) are 
responsible for the administration of 
affairs of the subsidiary. A formal charter 
agreed on by the Constituent Councils 
sets out the powers, functions and duties 
of Centennial Park Cemetery Authority.

The Authority is established to:

• to ensure that the assets and facilities 
at Centennial Park are developed, 
maintained and operated in a 
sustainable and efficient manner; 

• to deliver effective and sustainable 
service provision for the Constituent 
Councils, customers of Centennial Park 
and the community of South Australia; 

• to manage the facilities of and services 
at Centennial Park utilising sound 
business concepts; 

• to establish and demonstrate ethical 
policies and standards, in accordance 
with the rights of customers and 
industry standards; 

• to provide security of tenure for all 
internment licences at Centennial Park 

through sound financial and business 
management; 

• to pro-actively manage the business of 
Centennial Park in a competitive and 
changing environment; 

• to undertake key strategic and policy 
decisions for the purpose of enhancing 
and developing Centennial Park; and 

• to be financially self-sufficient.

The Centennial Park Cemetery 
Annual Report can be accessed 
at https://www.centennialpark.
org/wp-content/uploads/bsk-pdf-
manager/2019/10/1337_CC_A4_2019_
Annual_Report_hyperlinks-1.pdf

Eastern Waste Management 
Authority (East Waste)

The property of Eastern Waste 
Management Authority is held on behalf 
of the constituent owner councils being 
the City of Mitcham, City of Burnside, 
City of Norwood, Payneham & St Peters, 
Adelaide Hills Council, Campbelltown 
City Council, Corporation of the Town of 
Walkerville and more recently City of 
Prospect, which joined in September 
2017. A Board of Management 
consisting of three councillors and four 
chief executive officers representing 
the constituent councils and an 
independent chair are responsible for 
the administration of the affairs of the 
subsidiary. A formal charter agreed on by 
constituent council’s sets out the powers, 
functions and duties of Eastern Waste 
Management Authority.

The Authority is established by the 
constituent councils for the purpose 
of the collection and disposal of 
waste, primarily within the areas of 
the constituent councils and has the 
following functions:

• to predominantly operate or obtain 
services for the collection of waste on 
behalf of constituent councils and/or 
other approved councils; 

• to provide waste management 
services whether in or (so far as the Act 
allows) outside the area of any of the 
constituent councils, including waste 
collection, recycling of organic and 
inorganic materials, disposal of waste; 
and

• to undertake management and 
collection of waste (in accordance 
with regulatory approvals) and 
kerbside materials recovery, on 
behalf of constituent councils (and/
or other approved councils) in an 
environmentally responsible, effective, 
efficient, economic and competitive 
manner.

The Eastern Waste Management 
Authority Annual Report can be accessed 
at https://www.eastwaste.com.au/wp-
content/uploads/2019/10/EAS82020-
East-Waste-Annual-Report-2018-19-
final-30.9.19.pdf

Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks 
Stormwater Board

The South Australian Government 
approved a regional subsidiary, 
the “Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks 
Stormwater Board” (the Board) on 
15 February 2018.  The Board was 
established by the Cities of Mitcham, 
Adelaide, Burnside, Unley and West 
Torrens to act on behalf of the five 
catchment councils in managing the 
implementation of the Brown Hill 
Keswick Creek Stormwater Management 
Plan.  The Board is responsible for the 
construction, management and ongoing 
maintenance of all flood mitigation 
works as part of the Brown Hill Keswick 
Creek Stormwater Project. New Board 
members are due to be appointed in the 
early part of the 2019/20 financial year.

The Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks 
Stormwater Board Annual Report can be 
accessed at https://bhkcstormwater.com.
au/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/BHKC-
Annual-Report-2018-19.pdf
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MEMBERS’ 
ALLOWANCES
The Local Government Act 1999 provides for the payment of elected member 
allowances.

An elected member of council is entitled to an annual allowance for performing 
and discharging official functions and duties. The annual allowance, as set by the 
Remuneration Tribunal of South Australia is adjusted in November each year: 

Role
Annual Allowance  

(from 30 August 2018)

Mayor $82,520

Elected Members $20,630

The Elected Members’ Allowances and Support Policy sets out a comprehensive 
summary of the provisions of the Local Government Act 1999 and Regulations with 
respect to Elected Member allowances, expenses and provision of facilities, support 
and benefits. It also sets out the circumstances under which Council approves the 
reimbursement of additional expenses on a discretionary basis.

Full details of these and other reimbursements paid to members of Council are detailed 
in the Register of Allowances and Benefits available for viewing at the City of Mitcham 
Civic Centre, 131 Belair Road, Torrens Park.

Fees for the Audit Committee and Development Assessment Panel members were set 
by Council resolution as follows:

Role Fee

Audit Committee Independent Presiding Member 
per sitting

$505

Audit Committee Independent Member per sitting $400 up until 27 November 2018  
- $410 onwards17

Audit Committee Elected Member per sitting Nil

Council Assessment Panel Independent Presiding 
Member per sitting 

$540

Council Assessment Panel Independent Member 
per sitting 

$420

Council Assessment Panel Elected Member 
per sitting 

$215 up until 12 March 2019  
– $325.00 onwards18

17 Sitting Fees for Independent Members on the Audit Committee were raised to $410 as resolved by 
Council on 27 November 2018

18 The Full Council passed a resolution at the 12 March 2019 Meeting – Item 8.7 to increase sitting fees 
for Elected Members sitting on CAP to $325.00
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The following allowance payments were 
made to Elected Members during the 
2018/19 financial year:

The following sitting fees were paid by 
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority to 
Elected Members on the Board of the 
Authority during the 2018/19 financial 
year:

The following sitting fee was paid by 
Carrick Hill Trust to an elected member on 
the Board of the Trust during the 2018/19 
financial year:

The elected members appointed as 
a Director or Deputy Director on the 
Eastern Waste Management Authority 
Board do not receive a sitting fee.

Elected Member Allowance

Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross $52,346

Mayor Glenn Spear $31,938

Councillor Adriana Christopoulos $23,475

Councillor Andrew Tilley $29,475

Councillor Corin McCarthy $12,933

Councillor Darren Kruse $14,758

Councillor David Munro $23,981

Councillor Jane Bange $22,457

Councillor Jasmine Berry $14,491

Councillor John Sanderson $22,198

Councillor John Wilson $7,956

Councillor Karen Hockley $28,302

Councillor Katarina Steele $12,748

Councillor Lindy Taeuber $22,436

Councillor Nicholas Economos $7,995

Councillor Stephen Fisher $22,650

Councillor Tim Hein $7,997

Councillor Yvonne Todd $25,139

Total $383,281

Board Member Allowance

Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross19 Nil

Mayor Glenn Spear $2,307

Councillor Adriana Christopoulos $2,307

Councillor David Munro20 $2,620

Councillor Karen Hockley21 $2,620

19 Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross was elected to the Board of Centennial Park Cemetery Authority by 
Council Resolution on 9 October 2018 to 12 February 2019  

20 Cr Munro was elected to the Board by Council Resolution on 12 February 2019 for a period of 
two years

21 Cr Hockley was elected to the Board by Council Resolution on 12 February 2019 for a period of 
two years

Board Member Allowance

Councillor Lindy Taeuber $1,062

Board Member Allowance

Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross22 Nil

Cr Karen Hockley (Director) Nil

Cr Stephen Fisher (Deputy Director) Nil

22 Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross was elected to the Board of East Waste by Council Resolution on 9 
October 2018 to 12 February 2019

Payments made to Elected Members 

Payments made to Elected Members appointed to the Board of the Centennial Park Cemetery Authority 

Payments made to Elected Members appointed to the Board of the Carrick Hill Trust

Payments made to Elected Members appointed to the Board of the Eastern Waste Management Authority

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

PAGE 54 CITY OF MITCHAM ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 



Staff Member - Mitcham Library
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ELECTED MEMBER 
TRAINING AND 
DEVELOPMENT
Council encourages continued 
professional training and development 
for elected members. This is seen as 
being necessary in terms of good 
governance and the improved 
performance of their functions and 
duties. The Council’s Members’ Allowances 
and Support Policy sets out the provisions 
of the Local Government Act 1999 and 
Local Government (Members Allowances 
and Benefits) Regulations 2010 in 
respect of elected members allowances, 
expenses and support (including training 
and development). 

Pursuant to Regulation 8AA of the 
Local Government (General) Regulations 
2013, Council must ensure that elected 
members complete the mandatory 
Local Government Association Training 
Standards within the first 12 months 

of their four-year term of office, being 
November 2019. The mandatory training 
is made up of the following modules and 
has been made available to all elected 
members since the 2014/15 financial 
year:

• Module 1 – Introduction to Local 
Government – minimum requirement 
1.5 hours.

• Module 2 – Legal Responsibilities – 
minimum requirement 2 hours.

• Module 3 – Council and Committee 
Meetings – minimum requirement 1.5 
hours.

• Module 4 – Financial Management and 
Reporting – minimum requirement 2.5 
hours.

Access to conferences is dependent on 
the perceived benefits of attendance to 
elected members and the Council and 
the available budget. Information gained 
from attendances at conferences is to be 
shared with all elected members by way 
of a public report to Council. The Elected 
Members’ Attendance at Conference Policy 
covers the circumstances under which 
Council approves attendance at a local, 
interstate or overseas conference.

Elected Members
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2018/19 Activity Attendees

Local Government Association – Modules 1, 3 and 4 
Mandatory Training

Cr Adriana Christopoulos 
Cr Andrew Tilley 
Cr David Munro 
Cr Jane Bange  
Cr John Sanderson

Cr Karen Hockley 
Cr Lindy Taeuber 
Cr Stephen Fisher  
Cr Yvonne Todd

Kelledy Jones Lawyers – Module 2 – Mandatory Training Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross 
Cr Adriana Christopoulos 
Cr Andrew Tilley  
Cr Corin McCarthy 
Cr Darren Kruse 
Cr David Munro 
Cr Jasmine Berry

Cr John Sanderson 
Cr Katarina Steele 
Cr Karen Hockley 
Cr Lindy Taeuber 
Cr Stephen Fisher 
Cr Yvonne Todd

Local Government Association Annual General Meeting 
Dinner 25 October 2018

Mayor Glenn Spear  
Cr Adriana Christopoulos

Local Government Association Media Training 
31 March 2019

Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross 
Cr Adriana Christopoulos 
Cr Andrew Tilley 
Cr Corin McCarthy 
Cr Darren Kruse 
Cr David Munro 
Cr Jane Bange 

Cr Jasmine Berry  
Cr John Sanderson 
Cr Karen Hockley 
Cr Katarina Steele 
Cr Lindy Taeuber 
Cr Stephen Fisher 
Cr Yvonne Todd

Public Interest Disclosure Act Training 21 May 2019 Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross 
Cr Adriana Christopoulos 
Cr Andrew Tilley 
Cr Corin McCarthy 
Cr Darren Kruse 
Cr David Munro 
Cr Jane Bange 

Cr Jasmine Berry 
Cr John Sanderson 
Cr Katarina Steele 
Cr Karen Hockley 
Cr Lindy Taeuber 
Cr Yvonne Todd

National General Assembly 2019 Mayor Heather Homes-Ross  
Cr Karen Hockley 
Cr Yvonne Todd

Local Government Association Ordinary General 
Meeting

Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross 
Cr Taeuber

Audit Committee Members Seminar Cr Darren Kruse

Murray Darling Association National Conference & 
Annual General Meeting

Cr Andrew Tilley

Murray Darling Association Region 6 Annual General 
Meeting and Ordinary Meeting

Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross  
Cr Andrew Tilley

Local Government Association Leadership Program Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross

ELECTED MEMBER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
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FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION
Under Section 12 of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1991, a person has a 
legally enforceable right to be given 
access to an agency's documents in 
accordance with this Act. There were 18 
Freedom of Information applications for 
access received. Of the 18 applications in 
total, eight were released in full, eight 
were partially released and two were 
refused. 

Under Section 30 of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1991, members of 
the public may apply to have any 
information contained in documents 

which relate to their personal affairs 
amended. There were no applications for 
amendment.

Under Section 38 of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1991, a person who is 
aggrieved by a determination made 
by an agency is entitled to a review 
of the determination. There were no 
applications for internal review received.

Under Section 39 of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1991, a person who is 
aggrieved by a determination of an 
agency following an internal review 
or by a determination that is not liable 

to internal review may apply to the 
relevant review authority for a review 
of the determination. There were no 
applications to the Ombudsman SA for an 
external review.

Council is required under Section 9(1) 
and (1a) of the Freedom of Information 
Act 1991 to publish annually an 
Information Statement. A copy of this 
Statement is available from  
www.mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au.

Australia Day 2019
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CONFIDENTIAL 
PROVISIONS
The City of Mitcham is committed to the principal of open and accountable government 
with meetings ordinarily conducted in public. Council also recognises that on occasions 
it may be necessary or appropriate for particular matters to be considered in confidence 
as allowed under Section 90 of the Local Government Act 1999.

During this financial year, 15 items were considered in confidence under Section 90 of 
the Local Government Act 1999. The table below shows the number of times each clause 
has been used by Council or its committees. It should be noted that in some instances 
multiple clauses have been used for single items.

Section Description
Number of 

Times Used

90(2) A council or council committee may order that the public 
be excluded from attendance at a meeting to the extent 
(and only to the extent) that the council or council 
committee considers it to be necessary and appropriate 
to act in a meeting closed to the public in order to receive, 
discuss or consider in confidence any information or 
matter listed in subsection (3) (after taking into account 
any relevant consideration under that subsection).

15

90(3)(A) Information the disclosure of which would involve the 
unreasonable disclosure of information concerning the 
personal affairs of any person (living or dead).

4

90(3)(b) information the disclosure of which-

commercial information of a confidential nature (not 
being a trade secret) the disclosure of which-

(i) could reasonably be expected to prejudice the 
commercial position of the person who supplied the 
information, or to confer a commercial advantage on a 
third party; and

(ii) would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest.

4

90(3)(d) commercial information of a confidential nature (not 
being a trade secret) the disclosure of which-

(i) could reasonably be expected to prejudice the 
commercial position of the person who supplied the 
information, or to confer a commercial advantage on a 
third party; and

(ii) would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest.

6

90(3)(i) information relating to actual litigation, or litigation that 
the council or council committee believes on reasonable 
grounds will take place, involving the council or an 
employee of the council

1

91(7) If an order is made under subsection (2), a note must be 
made in the minutes of the making of the order and of 
the grounds on which it was made.

15
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CONFIDENTIAL PROVISIONS
Items put in confidence during the year and status as at 30 June 2019:

Meeting date Meeting Item No Report Title Clause2 91(7)
Status at  

30 June 2019

24 Jul 18 Council 8.1 Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater 
Regional Subsidiary – Board Membership

90(3)(a) Y Remains in confidence

14 Aug 18 Council 8.3 Centennial Park Cemetery Authority – 
Commercial investment

90(3)(d) Y Remains in confidence

14 Aug 18 Council 8.1 Redevelopment of the Mitcham Memorial 
Library and Brownhill Creek Project – Tender 
Update

90(3)(b) Y All items released 31 May 
2019

14 Aug 18 Council 8.2 Centennial Park Cemetery Authority 
Operating Budget 2018/19

90(3)(d) Y Remains in confidence

21 Aug 18 Audit 4.1 Centennial Park Cemetery Authority – 
Commercial Investment

90(3)(a) Y Remains in confidence

28 Aug 18 Council 8.1 Centennial Park Cemetery Authority – 
Commercial Investment

90(3)(d) Y Remains in confidence

28 Aug 18 Council 8.2 Blackwood District Centre 90(3)(b) Y Remains in confidence

11 Sep 18 Council 7.3 Centennial Park Cemetery Authority – 
Commercial Investment

90(3)(d) Y Remains in confidence

10 Dec 18 Australia 
Day Awards 
Committee

3.1 Australia Day Awards 2019 Selection 90(3)(a) Y All items released 31 Jan 
2019

26 Mar 19 Council 8.1 Blackwood Community Hub and Waite 
Street Reserve Preliminary Design – Phase 2

90(3)(b) Y Attachment only held in 
confidence

26 Mar 19 Council 8.4 Acquisition of land for road purposes- 
Boronia Avenue, Coromandel Valley

90(3)(b) Y Attachment only held in 
confidence

23 Apr 19 Council 10.2 East Waste 2019/20 Draft Annual Plan and 
Budget

90(3)(d) Y Attachment only held in 
confidence

23 Apr 19 Council 10.1  East Waste Recycling Contract 90(3)(d) Y Remains in confidence

14 May 19 Council 8.3 Council Assessment Panel Independent 
Membership

90(3)(a) Y No items are in 
confidence – the 

discussion was held in 
confidence

25 Jun 19 Council 9.1 DPTI Darlington Upgrade Public Art 90(3)(i) Y Remains in confidence

There were 101 orders still operative at the end of the financial year (not including orders made before 15 November 2010).
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SECTION 270 INTERNAL 
REVIEWS OF DECISIONS
Pursuant to Section 270(8) of the Local Government Act 1999, the Council provides the following relevant information in relation to 
reviews received under Section 270 of the Act for the 2018/19 financial year:

Application  
[s270(8)(a)]

Matter  
[s270(8)(b)]

Outcome  
[s270(8)(c)]

3 July 2018 Mortlock Park Baseball Lease ( review of decision of Full Council 11 July 2017) Refused – out of time

24 July 2018 Mortlock Park Football Lease ( review of decision of Full Council 11 July 2017) Refused – out of time

29 July 2018 Mortlock Park (review of decision of Full Council 13 February 2018) Affirmed decision

30 July 2018 Mortlock Park – Review of decision in relation to refusing a request made 3 July Affirmed decision

27 August 2018 Light Installation on Sargent Parade (review of Local Government Mutual 
Liability Scheme)

Refused – no jurisdiction

19 January 2019 Mortlock Park (review of decision of Full Council 11 December 2018) In progress

19 January 2019 Mortlock Park (review of decision of Full Council 11 September 2018) In progress

4 February 2019 Sinking Driveway (review of a decision of Council 16 October 2018) Affirmed decision – civil matter

22 March 2019 Development Application (review of decision Environment, Resources and 
Development Court)

Refused– no jurisdiction

19 June 2019 Randell Park (review of decision of Full Council 26 March 2019) In progress

Blackwood Railway Station
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NATIONAL 
COMPETITION POLICY
Competitive Neutrality, Significant 
Business Activities and Structural 
Reform of Public Monopolies

The competition principles applicable to 
Local Government under the competition 
principle s agreement require that 
each Local Government authority issue 
a clause 7 statement. For the last year 
Council advises that it:

• Has two significant businesses defined 
as category 1 businesses under 
competitive neutrality principles – 
Eastern Waste Management Authority 
and Centennial Park Cemetery 
Authority which neither commenced 
nor ceased operating during the 
2018/19 financial year.

• Has no by-laws which place barriers on 
market entry, conduct or discriminates 
between competitors.

• Has received no complaints alleging 
a breach of competitive neutrality 
principles by Council in 201 8/2019.

• Has not been involved in any structural 
reform of monopolies in 2018/2019.

Competitive Tendering

The City of Mitcham is committed to 
ensuring open, fair and transparent 
processes with respect to procurement 
activities which ensure the equitable 
treatment of suppliers while adhering 
to appropriate standards of probity. The 
Council’s Procurement Policy adheres 
to section 49 of the Local Government 
Act, 1999. The Policy and supporting 
procedures aim to facilitate the delivery 
of best value goods, works and services 
to the community in a sustainable way. 

The types of procurement methods 
utilised by Council are determined by 
reference to the level of expenditure 
established within Council’s procurement 
procedures, together with a 
consideration of the complexity, risk and 
prevailing market conditions associated 
with the procurement. The method 
chosen is with a view to achieving the 
best value for money result.

The Council’s procurement procedures 
provide for competitive procurement 
processes for all requirements valued in 
excess of $5,000 unless an exemption 
has been sought. In excess of 75% of 
Council expenditure was subject to a 
competitive approach to market.

A comprehensive contract register for all 
contracts is in place.

Council is committed to continuous 
improvement with respect to its 
procurement practices. Currently the 
Council is revisiting its policy and 
procedural framework for procurement 
together with its contractual tools and 
considering appropriate change in light 
of its spend trends.

In fulfilling Council’s procurement 
function the following principles apply:

• suppliers need to adhere to acceptable 
standards of work health and safety 
practices;

• the conservation of resources, energy 
efficiencies, minimisation of waste, 
protection of the environment and 
principles of ecological sustainability 
are encouraged; and

• Council incorporates the principles of 
the Disability Discrimination Act, 1992. 

Council is committed to maximising the 
benefits of its procurement activities to 
the local economy and community. The 
Procurement Policy provides that subject 
to all commercial considerations being 
equal Council may, subject to the law, 
give preference to: 

• suppliers operating in the Mitcham 
Council area; 

• products that are Australian made; 

• products that are produced from 
recycled material collected in Council’s 
area;

• products that are accredited to the 
Home Workers Code of Practice.
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LOCAL NUISANCE AND 
LITTER CONTROL ACT 
2016 AND REGULATIONS
Local Nuisance and Litter Complaints

Nature Complaints

Local Nuisance

Dust 42

Noise 67

Odour 29

Smoke 22

Fumes 0

Aerosols 0

Animals 111

Insanitary Condition 81

Unsightly Condition 31

Vibration 0

Other 100

Litter control

Any amount of class A hazardous litter 0

50 litres or more of class B hazardous litter or general litter 0

Up to 50 litres of class B hazardous litter 0

Up to 50 litres of general litter 746

Bill posting without owner consent 0

Nuisance and Litter Abatement Notices

Ref Abatement Notices

s30(1)(a) Local nuisance 0

s30(1)(b) Litter control 1

Offenses Expiated and Prosecuted

Ref Offence Expiations Prosecutions

s20 Fail to cease local nuisance 1 0

s22 (1) (d)  
Maximum penalty

Disposing of up to 50 litres of 
general litter

17 0

Civil penalties negotiated under section 34 of the Act: 0

Applications to the Court for orders for civil penalties under section 34 of the Act: 0

The number of orders made by the Court on those applications: 0

Any other functions performed by the council under the Act: 0
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DOCUMENTS REQUIRED 
TO BE MAINTAINED BY 
COUNCIL
The City of Mitcham has a range of corporate governance documents, registers, codes and policies to assist with decision making and 
to ensure Council’s activities are undertaken in an accountable, efficient, open and transparent manner.

Registers

The following are registers keep by 
Council as required under the Local 
Government Act 1999 and the Local 
Government (Elections) Act 1999:

• Assessment Record

• Delegations Register

• Policy Register

• Register of By-laws

• Register of Campaign Donations 
Returns

• Register of Community Land

• Register of Dogs

• Register of Fees and Charges

• Register of Gifts and Benefits – Council 
Officers

• Register of Gifts and Benefits – Elected 
Members

• Register of Interests – Council Officers

• Register of Interests – Elected Members

• Register of Land Management 
Agreements

• Register of Land Management 
Agreements – Development 
Applications

• Register of Members Allowances and 
Benefits

• Register of Planning and Building 
Applications

• Register of Remuneration, Salaries and 
Benefits – Council Officers

• Register of Roads

Codes of Conduct or Practice

The following is a list of Code of Conduct 
or Code of  Practice documentation that 
Council is required to keep under the 
Local Government Act 1999: 

• Code of Conduct - Elected Members

• Code of Conduct - Employees

• Code of Practice - Access to Meetings 
and Documents

• Code of Practice - Meeting Procedures

Copies of Codes and Registers (except for 
Register of Interests – Council Officers) 
are available to the public from the City 
of Mitcham Civic Centre, 131 Belair Road, 
Torrens Park or on Council’s website at 
www.mitchamcouncil.sa.gov.au.

Policy Documents

All of Councils public policies are 
available to the public and are located 
on Council’s website and include 
mandatory policies as follows:

• Complaint Handling

• Complaints Management

• Caretaker Policy

• Induction, Training and Development 
for Elected Members

• Elected Members Allowance and 
Support

• Informal Gatherings

• Internal Control

• Internal Review of a Council Decision

• Order Making

• Procurement

• Prudential Management

• Public Consultation

• Road Naming

OTHER CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

The following corporate documents are 
also available to the public on Council’s 
website: 

• Annual Report

• Audited Financial Statements

• Charter for Centennial Park Cemetery 
Trust

• Charter for Eastern Waste Management 
Authority

• Charter for Brown Hill and Keswick 
Creeks Stormwater Board

• Council and Committee Agendas and 
Minutes

• Development Plan and Development 
Plan Amendments

• Fees and Charges

• Information Statement

• Procedure for the Review of Council 
Decisions

• Strategic Management Plan

• Annual Business Plan

• Long Term Financial Plan

• Asset Management Plans

 The following is available to view on 
request:

• Electoral Roll
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Zest Fest

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
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City of Mitcham
 GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

A healthy, inclusive and prosperous community living and 
working in harmony with the environment.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER STATEMENT ON 
FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
The Council maintains a strong, financially sustainable position, which seeks to match the 
needs and expectations of the community to available resources in providing value for money 
in the delivery of services. The Long Term Financial Plan confirms this – setting out the financial 
impacts of resource and investment decisions aligned to achieve the objectives of the Strategic 
Management Plan. This has enabled considered investment in a broad range of important 
services, initiatives and projects over the course of the last financial year (as reported herein).

EXTERNAL INFLUENCES AND RISKS
The 2018/19 Long Term Financial Plan identified a number of possible external influences 
and risks which could have an impact on Council’s financial position. Of those identified, two 
materialised in the last financial period and caused impacts for future years. 
The most significant was the State Government’s increase of 40% to the Solid Waste Levy at 
the end of the financial year, requiring Council to increase its budget for the new financial year 
by approximately $373,400. These changes happened too late to allow Council to consult the 
community on changes. The financial impact of this increase remains significant for the 2020/21 
financial year as well.  
Council also incurred new expenses as a result of amended responsibilities under the Litter, 
Noise and Nuisance Legislation. These changes did not attract resources or funding from the 
State Government but resulted in Council’s decision to recruit a new a Local Nuisance and Litter 
Control Officer for 2019/20.
Despite these realised cost pressures, Council maintained a strong financial position.
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City of Mitcham
 GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

A healthy, inclusive and prosperous community living and 
working in harmony with the environment.
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City of Mitcham

General Purpose Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019
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3. Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements

5. Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls
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- Audit Certificate of Audit Independence 52
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City of Mitcham

Statement of Financial Position
 as at 30 June 2019

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade & Other Receivables
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Other Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets

EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus
Asset Revaluation Reserves
Other Reserves

Total Council Equity

11,842

630,602

29,564

345,254

616
12,458

9b 11
285,337

630,602

6a

7a

8b

8c

Notes

10,480

15,614

5b

6,959

22,334

2018

4,786
30

17,518

35
7,496

2019

1,277
5,428

270,959

515
13,077

13,592

29,196

610,831

339,861

595,161
6,918

640,027

617,693

9a

17,106

16,350

8c 5,391
1,235

8a

8b

624,803

5c

5a

645,676

660,166

6b 4,523

14,490

610,831
11

8,899

15,604

X3A1T

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies.           page 4

City of Mitcham

Statement of Comprehensive Income
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

$ '000

Income
Rates Revenues
Statutory Charges
User Charges
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Investment Income
Reimbursements
Other Income
Net Gain - Equity Accounted Council Businesses

Total Income

Expenses
Employee Costs
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
Finance Costs
Net loss - Equity Accounted Council Businesses

Total Expenses

Operating Surplus / (Deficit)

Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets
Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Net Surplus / (Deficit) 1

Other Comprehensive Income
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to operating result
Changes in Revaluation Surplus - I,PP&E
Total Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

1 Transferred to Statement of Changes in Equity

3d

7,972

6,339

2,057

(2,832) (1,361)

58,720

652

64,185

5,465

486

137

700

63,972

82

21,561

572

291 228

3,713

60,259

19,771

4

44,832

4,317

9a 14,378

5,393
2h

38,493

2018

54,347 52,485

- 46

23,85322,683

2,168
67

152

148

14,378 38,493

669

12,774

Notes

2a

2b

2c

2g

2f

2019

3c

2e

3a

22,7293b

2d

19

1,765
646

14,147

5,954

19

2g 195

X3A0T

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies.           page 3
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City of Mitcham

Statement of Financial Position
 as at 30 June 2019

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade & Other Receivables
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Other Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets

EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus
Asset Revaluation Reserves
Other Reserves

Total Council Equity

11,842

630,602

29,564

345,254

616
12,458

9b 11
285,337

630,602

6a

7a

8b

8c

Notes

10,480

15,614

5b

6,959

22,334

2018

4,786
30

17,518

35
7,496

2019

1,277
5,428

270,959

515
13,077

13,592

29,196

610,831

339,861

595,161
6,918

640,027

617,693

9a

17,106

16,350

8c 5,391
1,235

8a

8b

624,803

5c

5a

645,676

660,166

6b 4,523

14,490

610,831
11

8,899

15,604

X3A1T

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies.           page 4
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City of Mitcham

Statement of Cash Flows
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

$ '000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts
Operating Receipts
Investment Receipts
Payments
Operating Payments to Suppliers and Employees
Finance Payments

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipts
Amounts Received Specifically for New/Upgraded Assets
Sale of Replaced Assets
Payments
Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets
Capital Contributed to Equity Accounted Council Businesses

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts
Proceeds from Borrowings
Payments
Repayments of Borrowings

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period

Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period 11 6,959 17,518

(1,277) 9,276

(10,559) 9,594

11 17,518 7,924

(1,277) (865)

(25,728) (19,325)

- 10,141

(392) -

(22,320) (17,814)
(3,795) (2,349)

195 67
584 771

(595) (486)

11b 16,446 19,643

(46,854) (44,723)

291 213

Notes 2019 2018

63,604 64,639

X5A0T

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies.           page 6

City of Mitcham

Statement of Changes in Equity
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Asset
Accumulated Revaluation Other Total

$ '000 Notes Surplus Reserve Reserves Equity

2019
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 339,861 270,959 11 610,831

a. Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 5,393 - - 5,393

b. Other Comprehensive Income
- Gain (Loss) on Revaluation of I,PP&E 7a - 14,378 - 14,378
- Other Equity Adjustments - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 19 - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income - 14,378 - 14,378

Total Comprehensive Income 5,393 14,378 - 19,771

Balance at the end of period 345,254 285,337 11 630,602

2018
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 333,462 232,468 11 565,941

a. Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 6,339 - - 6,339

b. Other Comprehensive Income
- Gain (Loss) on Revaluation of I,PP&E 7a - 38,491 - 38,491
- Other Equity Adjustments - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 19 60 - - 60
Other Comprehensive Income 60 38,491 - 38,551

Total Comprehensive Income 6,399 38,491 - 44,890

Balance at the end of period 339,861 270,959 11 610,831

X4A0T

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies.          page 5
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City of Mitcham

Statement of Cash Flows
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

$ '000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts
Operating Receipts
Investment Receipts
Payments
Operating Payments to Suppliers and Employees
Finance Payments

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipts
Amounts Received Specifically for New/Upgraded Assets
Sale of Replaced Assets
Payments
Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets
Capital Contributed to Equity Accounted Council Businesses

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts
Proceeds from Borrowings
Payments
Repayments of Borrowings

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period

Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period 11 6,959 17,518

(1,277) 9,276

(10,559) 9,594

11 17,518 7,924

(1,277) (865)

(25,728) (19,325)

- 10,141

(392) -

(22,320) (17,814)
(3,795) (2,349)

195 67
584 771

(595) (486)

11b 16,446 19,643

(46,854) (44,723)

291 213

Notes 2019 2018

63,604 64,639

X5A0T

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies.           page 6
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The principal accounting policies adopted by Council 
in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are set out below. 
 
These policies have been consistently applied to all 
the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
1 Basis of Preparation 
 
1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting 

Standards 
 
This general purpose financial report has been 
prepared on a going concern basis using the 
historical cost convention in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to 
not-for-profit entities, other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South 
Australian legislation. 
 
The financial report was authorised for issue by 
certificate under regulation 14 of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 
2011. 
 
1.2 Historical Cost Convention  
 
Except as stated below, these financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with the historical 
cost convention. 
 
1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with Australian Accounting Standards requires the 
use of certain critical accounting estimates and 
requires management to exercise its judgement in 
applying Council’s accounting policies.   
 
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements 
are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of 
these Notes. 
 
1.4 Rounding  
 
All amounts in the financial statements have been 
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000). 
 
 
 

2 The Local Government Reporting Entity 
 
City of Mitcham is incorporated under the South 
Australian Local Government Act 1999 and has its 
principal place of business at 131 Belair Road, 
Torrens Park SA 5062. These financial statements 
include the Council’s direct operations and all entities 
through which Council controls resources to carry on 
its functions. In the process of reporting on the 
Council as a single unit, all transactions and 
balances between activity areas and controlled 
entities have been eliminated. 
 
The principal activities and entities conducted other 
than in the Council’s own name that have been 
included in these consolidated financial statements 
are: 
 

1. Centennial Park Cemetery Authority (50% 
ownership interest/voting power) 

2. East Waste Management Authority (14.29% 
ownership interest/voting power) 

3. Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater 
Board (10% ownership interest / 20% voting 
power) 

 
3 Income Recognition  
 
Income is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Income is 
recognised when the Council obtains control over the 
assets comprising the income, or when the amount 
due constitutes an enforceable debt, whichever first 
occurs. 
 
Where grants, contributions and donations 
recognised as incomes during the reporting period 
were obtained on the condition that they be 
expended in a particular manner or used over a 
particular period, and those conditions were 
undischarged as at the reporting date, the amounts 
subject to those undischarged conditions are 
disclosed in these notes. Also disclosed is the 
amount of grants, contributions and receivables 
recognised as incomes in a previous reporting period 
which were obtained in respect of the Council's 
operations for the current reporting period. 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements

Details

Significant Accounting Policies
Income
Expenses
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Trade & Other Receivables
Inventories
Non-Current Assets
Equity Accounted Investments in Council's Businesses
Other Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Other Reserves
Assets Subject to Restrictions
Reconciliation to Statement of Cashflows
Functions
Components of Functions
Financial Instruments
Commitments for Expenditure
Financial Indicators
Uniform Presentation of Finances
Operating Leases
Superannuation
Interests in Other Entities
Non Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations
Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Related Party Transactions

n/a  -  not applicable

23 45

5b 20
5c 20

7b 23

6a 21
6b

28
8b 28
8c

8a

10
11

28

28
9b 29
9a

29
30

16

42

39 n/a

31

38

33

12a

15
14

17

13
12b

19
18

37

32

39

40

43 n/a

Page

1

Note

7a

4
3

20

20

22

5a

8

21

2 16
18

43
45

20
21
22

X6A0T
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The principal accounting policies adopted by Council 
in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are set out below. 
 
These policies have been consistently applied to all 
the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
1 Basis of Preparation 
 
1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting 

Standards 
 
This general purpose financial report has been 
prepared on a going concern basis using the 
historical cost convention in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to 
not-for-profit entities, other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South 
Australian legislation. 
 
The financial report was authorised for issue by 
certificate under regulation 14 of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 
2011. 
 
1.2 Historical Cost Convention  
 
Except as stated below, these financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with the historical 
cost convention. 
 
1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with Australian Accounting Standards requires the 
use of certain critical accounting estimates and 
requires management to exercise its judgement in 
applying Council’s accounting policies.   
 
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements 
are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of 
these Notes. 
 
1.4 Rounding  
 
All amounts in the financial statements have been 
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000). 
 
 
 

2 The Local Government Reporting Entity 
 
City of Mitcham is incorporated under the South 
Australian Local Government Act 1999 and has its 
principal place of business at 131 Belair Road, 
Torrens Park SA 5062. These financial statements 
include the Council’s direct operations and all entities 
through which Council controls resources to carry on 
its functions. In the process of reporting on the 
Council as a single unit, all transactions and 
balances between activity areas and controlled 
entities have been eliminated. 
 
The principal activities and entities conducted other 
than in the Council’s own name that have been 
included in these consolidated financial statements 
are: 
 

1. Centennial Park Cemetery Authority (50% 
ownership interest/voting power) 

2. East Waste Management Authority (14.29% 
ownership interest/voting power) 

3. Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater 
Board (10% ownership interest / 20% voting 
power) 

 
3 Income Recognition  
 
Income is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Income is 
recognised when the Council obtains control over the 
assets comprising the income, or when the amount 
due constitutes an enforceable debt, whichever first 
occurs. 
 
Where grants, contributions and donations 
recognised as incomes during the reporting period 
were obtained on the condition that they be 
expended in a particular manner or used over a 
particular period, and those conditions were 
undischarged as at the reporting date, the amounts 
subject to those undischarged conditions are 
disclosed in these notes. Also disclosed is the 
amount of grants, contributions and receivables 
recognised as incomes in a previous reporting period 
which were obtained in respect of the Council's 
operations for the current reporting period. 
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assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to 
the acquisition, including architects' fees and 
engineering design fees and all other costs incurred. 
The cost of non-current assets constructed by the 
Council includes the cost of all materials used in 
construction, direct labour on the project and an 
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed 
overhead. 
 
6.2 Materiality  
 
Assets with an economic life in excess of one year 
are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition 
exceeds materiality thresholds established by 
Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in 
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to 
the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. 
Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during 
the year are given in Note 7. 
 
6.3 Subsequent Recognition  
 
All material asset classes are revalued on a regular 
basis such that the carrying values are not materially 
different from fair value. Significant uncertainties 
exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of 
asset classes including land, buildings and 
associated structures and infrastructure.  Further 
detail of these uncertainties, and of existing 
valuations, methods and valuers are provided at 
Note 7. 
 
6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets  
 
Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and 
equipment assets recognised are systematically 
depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line 
basis which, in the opinion of Council, best reflects 
the consumption of the service potential embodied in 
those assets. 
 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values of classes of assets are reviewed annually. 
 
Major depreciation periods for each class of asset 
are shown in Note 7.  Depreciation periods for 
infrastructure assets have been estimated based on 
the best information available to Council, but 
appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of 
these assets are not available, and extreme care 
should be used in interpreting financial information 
based on these estimates. 
 
 

6.5 Impairment  
 
Assets whose future economic benefits are not 
dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and 
where the future economic benefits would be 
replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not 
subject to impairment testing. 
 
Other assets that are subject to depreciation are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss 
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount 
(which is the higher of the present value of future 
cash inflows or value in use). 
 
Where an asset that has been revalued is 
subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset 
against such amount as stands to the credit of that 
class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any 
excess being recognised as an expense. 
 
6.6 Borrowing Costs  
 
Borrowing costs in relation to qualifying assets (net 
of offsetting investment revenue) have been 
capitalised in accordance with AASB 123 “Borrowing 
Costs”. The amounts of borrowing costs recognised 
as an expense or as part of the carrying amount of 
qualifying assets are disclosed in Note 3, and the 
amount (if any) of interest revenue offset against 
borrowing costs in Note 2. 
 
7 Payables 
 
7.1 Goods & Services  
 
Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the 
supply of goods and services and are recognised as 
liabilities when the goods and services are received. 
Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month 
of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts. 
 
7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits 
 
Amounts other than grants received from external 
parties in advance of service delivery, and security 
deposits held against possible damage to Council 
assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service 
is delivered or damage reinstated, or the amount is 
refunded as the case may be. 
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In recent years the payment of untied financial 
assistance grants has varied from the annual 
allocation as shown in the table below: 
 

 
Cash 

Payment 
Received 

Annual 
Allocation Difference 

2016/17 $3,118,152 $2,057,825 +$1,060,327 
2017/18 $2,478,932 $2,382,263 +$96,669 
2018/19 $2,576,235 $2,540,513 + $35,722 

 
 
Because these grants are untied, the Australian 
Accounting Standards require that payments be 
recognised upon receipt.  Accordingly, the operating 
results of these periods have been distorted 
compared to those that would have been reported 
had the grants been paid in the year to which they 
were allocated. 
 
The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Note 15 
has also been calculated after adjusting for the 
distortions resulting from the differences between the 
actual grants received and the grants entitlements 
allocated. 
 
4 Cash, Cash Equivalents and other   
   Financial Instruments  
 
Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible 
to cash on hand at Council’s option with an 
insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity 
of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Receivables for rates and annual charges are 
secured over the subject land, and bear interest at 
rates determined in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1999. Other receivables are 
generally unsecured and do not bear interest. 
 
All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date 
and adequate allowance made for amounts the 
receipt of which is considered doubtful. 
 
All financial instruments are recognised at fair value 
at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the 
accounting policies applied to financial instruments 
forms part of Note 13. 
 
5 Inventories  
 
Inventories held in respect of stores have been 
valued by using the weighted average cost on a 

continual basis, after adjustment for loss of service 
potential. Inventories held in respect of business 
undertakings have been valued at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value. 
 
5.1 Real Estate Assets Developments  
 
Real Estate Assets developments have been 
classified as Inventory in accordance with AASB 102 
and are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable 
value. Cost includes the costs of acquisition, 
development, borrowing and other costs incurred on 
financing of that acquisition and up to the time of 
sale. Any amount by which cost exceeds the net 
realisable value has been recognised as an expense. 
 
Revenues arising from the sale of property are 
recognised in the operating statement when 
settlement is completed. 
 
Properties not acquired for development, but which 
Council has decided to sell as surplus to 
requirements, are recognised at the carrying value at 
the time of that decision. 
 
5.2 Other Real Estate Held for Resale  
 
Properties not acquired for development, but which 
Council has decided to sell as surplus to 
requirements, are recognised at the carrying value at 
the time of that decision. 
 
Certain properties, auctioned for non-payment of 
rates in accordance with the Local Government Act 
but which failed to meet the reserve set by Council 
and are available for sale by private treaty, are 
recorded at the lower of the unpaid rates and 
charges at the time of auction or the reserve set by 
Council. Holding costs in relation to these properties 
are recognised as an expense when incurred. 
 
6 Infrastructure, Property, Plant &  
   Equipment 
 
6.1 Initial Recognition  
 
All assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets 
acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost 
is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition. 
 
All non-current assets purchased or constructed are 
capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and 
depreciated as soon as the asset is held “ready for 
use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the 
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assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to 
the acquisition, including architects' fees and 
engineering design fees and all other costs incurred. 
The cost of non-current assets constructed by the 
Council includes the cost of all materials used in 
construction, direct labour on the project and an 
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed 
overhead. 
 
6.2 Materiality  
 
Assets with an economic life in excess of one year 
are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition 
exceeds materiality thresholds established by 
Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in 
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to 
the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. 
Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during 
the year are given in Note 7. 
 
6.3 Subsequent Recognition  
 
All material asset classes are revalued on a regular 
basis such that the carrying values are not materially 
different from fair value. Significant uncertainties 
exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of 
asset classes including land, buildings and 
associated structures and infrastructure.  Further 
detail of these uncertainties, and of existing 
valuations, methods and valuers are provided at 
Note 7. 
 
6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets  
 
Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and 
equipment assets recognised are systematically 
depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line 
basis which, in the opinion of Council, best reflects 
the consumption of the service potential embodied in 
those assets. 
 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values of classes of assets are reviewed annually. 
 
Major depreciation periods for each class of asset 
are shown in Note 7.  Depreciation periods for 
infrastructure assets have been estimated based on 
the best information available to Council, but 
appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of 
these assets are not available, and extreme care 
should be used in interpreting financial information 
based on these estimates. 
 
 

6.5 Impairment  
 
Assets whose future economic benefits are not 
dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and 
where the future economic benefits would be 
replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not 
subject to impairment testing. 
 
Other assets that are subject to depreciation are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss 
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount 
(which is the higher of the present value of future 
cash inflows or value in use). 
 
Where an asset that has been revalued is 
subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset 
against such amount as stands to the credit of that 
class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any 
excess being recognised as an expense. 
 
6.6 Borrowing Costs  
 
Borrowing costs in relation to qualifying assets (net 
of offsetting investment revenue) have been 
capitalised in accordance with AASB 123 “Borrowing 
Costs”. The amounts of borrowing costs recognised 
as an expense or as part of the carrying amount of 
qualifying assets are disclosed in Note 3, and the 
amount (if any) of interest revenue offset against 
borrowing costs in Note 2. 
 
7 Payables 
 
7.1 Goods & Services  
 
Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the 
supply of goods and services and are recognised as 
liabilities when the goods and services are received. 
Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month 
of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts. 
 
7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits 
 
Amounts other than grants received from external 
parties in advance of service delivery, and security 
deposits held against possible damage to Council 
assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service 
is delivered or damage reinstated, or the amount is 
refunded as the case may be. 
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third party reimburses Council for actual costs 
incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the 
reporting period. As there is no profit component, 
such works are treated as 100% completed.  
Reimbursements not received are recognised as 
receivables and reimbursements received in 
advance are recognised as “payments received in 
advance”. 
 
For works undertaken on a fixed price contract basis, 
revenues and expenses are recognised on a 
percentage of completion basis.  Costs incurred in 
advance of a future claimed entitlement are classified 
as work in progress in inventory.  When it is probable 
that total contract costs will exceed total contract 
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an 
expense immediately. 
 
13 Equity Accounted Council Businesses  
 
Council participates in cooperative arrangements 
with other Councils for the provision of services and 
facilities. Council’s interests in cooperative 
arrangements, which are only recognised if material, 
are accounted for in accordance with AASB 128 and 
set out in detail in Note 19. 
 
Council has a 50% share in the regional subsidiary, 
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority, a 14.29% share 
in the regional subsidiary, East Waste Management 
Authority and a 10% share in the regional subsidiary 
Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board.  
Council’s share in these Authorities has been 
recognised in the Financial Statements by including 
its share of the net assets within the Balance Sheet.  
The change in equity share, excluding the asset 
revaluation, is disclosed in the Income Statement.  
These regional subsidiaries are accounted for in 
accordance with AASB 128 and set out in details for 
Note 19. 
 
As a result of changes made to the Charter of the 
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority in August 2011, 
all distributions paid by the Authority to Council are 
recorded as revenue in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  Distributions paid by the 
Authority to Council are regarded as payments for 
guaranteeing the liabilities of the Authority and 
accordingly are treated as expense in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income of the Authority. 
 
Council also participates in cooperative 
arrangements with other councils for the provision of 
services and facilities. 

14 GST Implications  
 
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting 
for the Goods & Services Tax”  
 
 Receivables and Creditors include GST 

receivable and payable. 
 

 Except in relation to input taxed activities, 
revenues and operating expenditures exclude 
GST receivable and payable. 
 

 Non-current assets and capital expenditures 
include GST net of any recoupment. 
 

 Amounts included in the Statement of Cash 
Flows are disclosed on a gross basis. 

 
15 New accounting standards and UIG  
     interpretations 
 
In the current year, Council adopted all of the new 
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) 
that are relevant to its operations and effective for 
the current reporting period.  The adoption of the 
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has 
not resulted in any material changes to Council's 
accounting policies. 
 
City of Mitcham has not applied any Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have 
been issued but are not yet effective. 
 
AASB 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures and 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments commenced from 1 
July 2018 and have the effect that non-contractual 
receivables (e.g. rates & charges) are now treated as 
financial instruments.  Although the disclosures 
made in Note 13 Financial Instruments have 
changed, there are no changes to the amounts 
disclosed. 
 
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, 
which will commence from 1 July 2019, affect the 
timing with which revenues, particularly special 
purpose grants, are recognised.  Amounts received 
in relation to contracts with sufficiently specific 
performance obligations will in future only be 
recognised as these obligations are fulfilled.  In these 
Statements, the sum of $0 has been recognised as 
revenue, in accordance with the current Standards, 
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8 Borrowings  
 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net 
of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost.  Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and 
the redemption amount is recognised in the income 
statement over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. 
 
Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts 
which represent the present value of future cash 
flows associated with servicing the debt. Interest is 
accrued over the period to which it relates, and is 
recorded as part of “Payables”. 
 
9 Employee Benefits 
 
9.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences 
 
Liabilities for employees’ entitlements to salaries, 
wages and compensated absences expected to be 
paid or settled within 12 months of reporting date are 
accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based 
oncosts) measured in accordance with AASB 119. 
 
Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be 
paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows 
(including payroll based oncosts) to be made in 
respect of services provided by employees up to the 
reporting date. Present values are calculated using 
government guaranteed securities rates with similar 
maturity terms. 
 
Weighted avg. discount rate 1.06% (2018, 2.10%) 
Weighted avg. settlement period  7 years (2018, 7 years) 
 
No accrual is made for sick leave as Council 
experience indicates that, on average, sick leave 
taken in each reporting period is less than the 
entitlement accruing in that period, and this 
experience is expected to recur in future reporting 
periods. Council does not make payment for untaken 
sick leave. 
 
9.2 Superannuation  
 
The Council makes employer superannuation 
contributions in respect of its employees to the 
Statewide Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme 
has two types of membership, each of which is 
funded differently. No changes in accounting policy 
have occurred during either the current or previous 

reporting periods. Details of the accounting policies 
applied and Council’s involvement with the schemes 
are reported in Note 18. 
 
10 Provisions for Reinstatement, Restoration   
     and Rehabilitation 
 
Close down and restoration costs include the 
dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the 
removal of residual materials and remediation and 
rehabilitation of disturbed areas.  Estimated close 
down and restoration costs are provided for in the 
accounting period when the obligation arising from 
the related disturbance occurs and are carried at the 
net present value of estimated future costs. 
 
Although estimated future costs are based on a 
closure plan, such plans are based on current 
environmental requirements which may change.  
Council’s policy to maximise recycling is extending 
the operational life of these facilities, and significant 
uncertainty exists in the estimation of the future 
closure date. 
 
11 Leases  
 
Lease arrangements have been accounted for in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standard 
AASB 117. 
 
In respect of finance leases, where Council 
substantially carries all of the risks incident to 
ownership, the leased items are initially recognised 
as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. The 
assets are disclosed within the appropriate asset 
class and are amortised to expense over the period 
during which the Council is expected to benefit from 
the use of the leased assets. Lease payments are 
allocated between interest expense and reduction of 
the lease liability, according to the interest rate 
implicit in the lease. 
 
In respect of operating leases, where the lessor 
substantially retains all of the risks and benefits 
incident to ownership of the leased items, lease 
payments are charged to expense over the lease 
term. 
 
12 Construction Contracts  
 
Construction works undertaken by Council for third 
parties are generally on an agency basis where the 
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third party reimburses Council for actual costs 
incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the 
reporting period. As there is no profit component, 
such works are treated as 100% completed.  
Reimbursements not received are recognised as 
receivables and reimbursements received in 
advance are recognised as “payments received in 
advance”. 
 
For works undertaken on a fixed price contract basis, 
revenues and expenses are recognised on a 
percentage of completion basis.  Costs incurred in 
advance of a future claimed entitlement are classified 
as work in progress in inventory.  When it is probable 
that total contract costs will exceed total contract 
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an 
expense immediately. 
 
13 Equity Accounted Council Businesses  
 
Council participates in cooperative arrangements 
with other Councils for the provision of services and 
facilities. Council’s interests in cooperative 
arrangements, which are only recognised if material, 
are accounted for in accordance with AASB 128 and 
set out in detail in Note 19. 
 
Council has a 50% share in the regional subsidiary, 
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority, a 14.29% share 
in the regional subsidiary, East Waste Management 
Authority and a 10% share in the regional subsidiary 
Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board.  
Council’s share in these Authorities has been 
recognised in the Financial Statements by including 
its share of the net assets within the Balance Sheet.  
The change in equity share, excluding the asset 
revaluation, is disclosed in the Income Statement.  
These regional subsidiaries are accounted for in 
accordance with AASB 128 and set out in details for 
Note 19. 
 
As a result of changes made to the Charter of the 
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority in August 2011, 
all distributions paid by the Authority to Council are 
recorded as revenue in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  Distributions paid by the 
Authority to Council are regarded as payments for 
guaranteeing the liabilities of the Authority and 
accordingly are treated as expense in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income of the Authority. 
 
Council also participates in cooperative 
arrangements with other councils for the provision of 
services and facilities. 

14 GST Implications  
 
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting 
for the Goods & Services Tax”  
 
 Receivables and Creditors include GST 

receivable and payable. 
 

 Except in relation to input taxed activities, 
revenues and operating expenditures exclude 
GST receivable and payable. 
 

 Non-current assets and capital expenditures 
include GST net of any recoupment. 
 

 Amounts included in the Statement of Cash 
Flows are disclosed on a gross basis. 

 
15 New accounting standards and UIG  
     interpretations 
 
In the current year, Council adopted all of the new 
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) 
that are relevant to its operations and effective for 
the current reporting period.  The adoption of the 
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has 
not resulted in any material changes to Council's 
accounting policies. 
 
City of Mitcham has not applied any Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have 
been issued but are not yet effective. 
 
AASB 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures and 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments commenced from 1 
July 2018 and have the effect that non-contractual 
receivables (e.g. rates & charges) are now treated as 
financial instruments.  Although the disclosures 
made in Note 13 Financial Instruments have 
changed, there are no changes to the amounts 
disclosed. 
 
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, 
which will commence from 1 July 2019, affect the 
timing with which revenues, particularly special 
purpose grants, are recognised.  Amounts received 
in relation to contracts with sufficiently specific 
performance obligations will in future only be 
recognised as these obligations are fulfilled.  In these 
Statements, the sum of $0 has been recognised as 
revenue, in accordance with the current Standards, 
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using the modified retrospective approach. The 
recognition and measurement principles of the 
standards will be retrospectively applied for the 
current year and prior year comparatives as 
though the standards had always applied, 
consistent with AASB 108 Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 
 
The Council intends to apply the practical 
expedients available for the full retrospective 
method. Where revenue has been recognised in 
full under AASB 1004, prior to 1 July 2019, but 
where AASB 1058 would have required income 
to be recognised beyond that date, no 
adjustment is required. Further, Council is not 
required to restate income for completed 
contracts that start and complete within a 
financial year. This means where income under 
AASB 1004 was recognised in the comparative 
financial year (i.e. 2018/19), these also do not 
require restatement. 
 

 AASB 16 Leases – The Council has assessed 
the impacts of the new standard that initial 
application of AASB 16 will have on its 
consolidated financial statements, however, the 
actual impacts may differ as the new accounting 
policies are subject to change until the Council 
presents its first financial statements that include 
the date of initial application. 

 
AASB 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet 
lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee 
recognises a right-of-use asset representing its 
right to use the underlying asset and a lease 
liability representing its obligation to make lease 
payments. There are recognition exemptions for 
short-term leases and leases of low-value items. 
Lessor accounting remains similar to the current 
standard – i.e. lessors continue to classify leases 
as finance or operating leases. 
 

The following list identifies all the new and 
amended Australian Accounting Standards, and 
Interpretation, that were issued but not yet 
effective at the time of compiling these 
illustrative statements. 
 
The standards are expected to have a material 
impact upon Council's future financial 
statements are: 
 
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2019 

 AASB 16 Leases 
 

The standards are not expected to have a 
material impact upon Council's future financial 
statements are: 
 
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2019 

 
 AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: 

Grantors 
 

 AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: 
Grantors (Appendix D) 

 
 AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards - Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Entities 

 
 AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards - Transfers of Investment 
Property, Annual Improvements 2014-2016 
Cycle and Other Amendments 

 
 AASB 2017-4 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Uncertainty over Income 
Tax Treatments 

 
 AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Prepayment Features 
with Negative Compensation 

 
 AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Long-term Interests in 
Associates and Joint Ventures 

 
 AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 
2015–2017 Cycle 

 
 AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Plan Amendment, 
Curtailment or Settlement 

 
 AASB 2018-3 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements 

 
 AASB 2018-4 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Licensors 
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but would in future be recorded as a liability 
"Amounts in Advance" until the performance 
obligations have been fulfilled. 
 
AASB 16 Leases, which will commence from 1 July 
2019, requires that the right of use conveyed by 
leasing contracts - except leases with a maximum 
term of 12 months and leases for non-material 
amounts - be recognised as a form of Infrastructure, 
Property, Plant and Equipment, and that the lease 
liability be disclosed as a liability.  At 30 June 2019, 
Council has no leases to which this treatment will 
need to be applied. 
 
The effect on profit and loss in future years will be 
non-material. 
 
Some Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations have been issued but are not yet 
effective. Those standards have not been applied in 
these financial statements. Council will implement 
them when they are effective.  
 
The standards that are expected to have a 
material impact upon Council's future financial 
statements are: 
 
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 July 2019 
 
 AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers, AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit 
Entities and AASB 2016-8 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards - Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Entities. 
 
AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income 
recognition requirements that apply to not-to-
profit (NFP) entities, in conjunction with AASB 
15, and AASB 2016-8. These Standards 
supersede the majority of income recognition 
requirements relating to public sector NFP 
entities, previously in AASB 1004 Contributions. 
 
Identifiable impacts at the date of this report are: 
 
Some grants received by the Council will be 
recognised as a liability, and subsequently 
recognised progressively as revenue as the 
Council satisfies its performance obligations 
under the grant. At present, such grants are 
recognised as revenue upfront. 
 

Grants that are not enforceable and/or not 
sufficiently specific will not qualify for deferral, 
and continue to be recognised as revenue as 
soon as they are controlled. Council receives 
several grants from the Federal Government and 
State Government for which there are no 
sufficiently specific performance obligations 
these are expected to continue being recognised 
as revenue upfront assuming no change to the 
current grant arrangements. 
 
Depending on the respective contractual terms, 
the new requirements of AASB 15 may 
potentially result in a change to the timing of 
revenue from sales of the Council's goods and 
services such that some revenue may need to 
be deferred to a later reporting period to the 
extent that the Council has received payment but 
has not met its associated performance 
obligations (such amounts would be reported as 
a liability in the meantime). 
 
Prepaid rates will not be recognised as revenue 
until the relevant rating period starts. Until that 
time these receipts will be recognised as a 
liability (unearned revenue). There will be no 
impact upon the recognition of other fees and 
charges. 
 
Based on Councils assessment, if Council had 
adopted the new standards in the current 
financial year it would have had the following 
impacts: 
 
- Revenue increase/decrease due to deferral of 
grant funding, pre-paid rates, and other sales 
related revenue (based on the facts available to 
Council at the date of assessment) and not 
expected to have any impact. 
 
- There would be an equal reduction in the 
reported equity as the reduced revenue will 
require an increase in recognition of contract 
liabilities, and statutory receivables. 
 
- Net result would be lower on initial application 
as a result of decreased revenue. A range of 
new disclosures will also be required by the new 
standards in respect of the council's revenue. 
 
Transition method 
 
The Council intends to apply AASB 15, AASB 
1058 and AASB 2016-8 initially on 1 July 2019, 
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using the modified retrospective approach. The 
recognition and measurement principles of the 
standards will be retrospectively applied for the 
current year and prior year comparatives as 
though the standards had always applied, 
consistent with AASB 108 Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 
 
The Council intends to apply the practical 
expedients available for the full retrospective 
method. Where revenue has been recognised in 
full under AASB 1004, prior to 1 July 2019, but 
where AASB 1058 would have required income 
to be recognised beyond that date, no 
adjustment is required. Further, Council is not 
required to restate income for completed 
contracts that start and complete within a 
financial year. This means where income under 
AASB 1004 was recognised in the comparative 
financial year (i.e. 2018/19), these also do not 
require restatement. 
 

 AASB 16 Leases – The Council has assessed 
the impacts of the new standard that initial 
application of AASB 16 will have on its 
consolidated financial statements, however, the 
actual impacts may differ as the new accounting 
policies are subject to change until the Council 
presents its first financial statements that include 
the date of initial application. 

 
AASB 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet 
lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee 
recognises a right-of-use asset representing its 
right to use the underlying asset and a lease 
liability representing its obligation to make lease 
payments. There are recognition exemptions for 
short-term leases and leases of low-value items. 
Lessor accounting remains similar to the current 
standard – i.e. lessors continue to classify leases 
as finance or operating leases. 
 

The following list identifies all the new and 
amended Australian Accounting Standards, and 
Interpretation, that were issued but not yet 
effective at the time of compiling these 
illustrative statements. 
 
The standards are expected to have a material 
impact upon Council's future financial 
statements are: 
 
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2019 

 AASB 16 Leases 
 

The standards are not expected to have a 
material impact upon Council's future financial 
statements are: 
 
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2019 

 
 AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: 

Grantors 
 

 AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: 
Grantors (Appendix D) 

 
 AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards - Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Entities 

 
 AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards - Transfers of Investment 
Property, Annual Improvements 2014-2016 
Cycle and Other Amendments 

 
 AASB 2017-4 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Uncertainty over Income 
Tax Treatments 

 
 AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Prepayment Features 
with Negative Compensation 

 
 AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Long-term Interests in 
Associates and Joint Ventures 

 
 AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 
2015–2017 Cycle 

 
 AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Plan Amendment, 
Curtailment or Settlement 

 
 AASB 2018-3 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements 

 
 AASB 2018-4 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Licensors 
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Note 2. Income

$ '000

(a). Rates Revenues

General Rates
General Rates
Less: Mandatory Rebates
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs
Total General Rates

Other Rates (Including Service Charges)
Natural Resource Management Levy
Total Other Rates

Other Charges
Penalties for Late Payment
Legal & Other Costs Recovered
Total Other Charges

Total Rates Revenues

(b). Statutory Charges

Development Act Fees
Town Planning Fees
Animal Registration Fees & Fines
Parking Fines / Expiation Fees
Environmental Control Fines
Property & Rate Searches
Sundry
Total Statutory Charges

(c). User Charges

Cemetery
Council Houses
Hall & Equipment Hire
Reserve Hire Fees
Sales - General
Sundry
Telecommunication Towers
Total User Charges

117 110

164 140

77 62

61

9

29
126

168

20

114

52,420

1,684

243

54,347

1,684

209
34

239

2018Notes

(779)(842)

50,710

1,564

53,408

2019

(163)

211

1,564

9
202

(146)

51,652

31

1,765

52,485

348
326

499
743

30

180

27
2,057

646 572
37

344

423
610

2 4

X8A0T

X8A1T

X8A2T

X8A19T
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 AASB 2018-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 1059 

 
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2021 
 
 AASB 17 Insurance Contracts 
 
 AASB 17 Insurance Contracts (Appendix D) 
 
16 Comparative Figures 
 
To ensure comparability with the current reporting 
period’s figures, some comparative period line items 
and amounts may have been reclassified or 
individually reported for the first time within these 
financial statements and/or the notes. 
 
17 Disclaimer 
 
Nothing contained within these statements may be 
taken to be an admission of any liability to any 
person under any circumstance. 
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Note 2. Income

$ '000

(a). Rates Revenues

General Rates
General Rates
Less: Mandatory Rebates
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs
Total General Rates

Other Rates (Including Service Charges)
Natural Resource Management Levy
Total Other Rates

Other Charges
Penalties for Late Payment
Legal & Other Costs Recovered
Total Other Charges

Total Rates Revenues

(b). Statutory Charges

Development Act Fees
Town Planning Fees
Animal Registration Fees & Fines
Parking Fines / Expiation Fees
Environmental Control Fines
Property & Rate Searches
Sundry
Total Statutory Charges

(c). User Charges

Cemetery
Council Houses
Hall & Equipment Hire
Reserve Hire Fees
Sales - General
Sundry
Telecommunication Towers
Total User Charges

117 110

164 140

77 62

61

9

29
126

168

20

114

52,420

1,684

243

54,347

1,684

209
34

239

2018Notes

(779)(842)

50,710

1,564

53,408

2019

(163)

211

1,564

9
202

(146)

51,652

31

1,765

52,485

348
326

499
743

30

180

27
2,057

646 572
37

344

423
610

2 4

X8A0T

X8A1T

X8A2T

X8A19T
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Note 2. Income (continued)

$ '000

(h). Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Infrastructure
Total Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Note 3. Expenses

(a). Employee Costs

Salaries and Wages
Employee Leave Expense
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plan Contributions

Superannuation - Defined Benefit Plan Contributions

Workers' Compensation Insurance
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs
Total Operating Employee Costs

Total Number of Employees (full time equivalent at end of reporting period)

(b). Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
 - Auditing the Financial Reports
Audit Committee Sitting Fees
Development Assessment Sitting Panel Sitting Fees
Elected Members' Expenses
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses

7 4

256

23,853

256

1,415 1,42018

20

18

599 671
568 501

4,445 3,526
18,923

4,317 2,168
4,317 2,168

Notes 2019 2018

16,916

370 327

40

24

441 386

35

22,683
(1,260) (1,188)

X8A7T

X8A8T

X8A12T

X8A20T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2. Income (continued)

$ '000

(d). Investment Income

Interest on Investments
 - Local Government Finance Authority
 - Banks & Other
Total Investment Income

(e). Reimbursements

Private Works
Other
Total Reimbursements

(f). Other Income

Contributions from Subsidiaries
Sundry
Total Other Income

(g). Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets
Total Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets
Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Roads to Recovery
Individually Significant Item - Additional Grants Commission Payment (refer below)
Total Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions
The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 12.

(i) Sources of grants
Commonwealth Government
State Government
Other
Total

(ii) Individually Significant Items
Grant Commission (FAG) Grant Recognised as Income
Roads to Recovery

In June 2019 , as well as June 2018 and June 2017, an amount of $1,182,918 ($1,154,000 and $1,060,327 
respectively) was received from the SA Local Government Grants Commission as an advance payment in 
respect to Council's 2019/20 Commonwealth Financial Assistance Grant (FAG).

313 308

777 1,229

57
95

5,589

195

1,154

67

669

110

1,229

356 344

821 2,059
5,045 5,730

3,994

1,183

152 137

8,0396,149

283 250

1,154

6,149 8,039

1,183

652

27

-
201

39 27
291 228

252
-

Notes 2019 2018

195 67

5,954 7,972

777

X8A3T

X8A4T

X8A5T

X8A6T

page 17
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Note 2. Income (continued)

$ '000

(h). Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Infrastructure
Total Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Note 3. Expenses

(a). Employee Costs

Salaries and Wages
Employee Leave Expense
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plan Contributions

Superannuation - Defined Benefit Plan Contributions

Workers' Compensation Insurance
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs
Total Operating Employee Costs

Total Number of Employees (full time equivalent at end of reporting period)

(b). Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
 - Auditing the Financial Reports
Audit Committee Sitting Fees
Development Assessment Sitting Panel Sitting Fees
Elected Members' Expenses
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses

7 4

256

23,853

256

1,415 1,42018

20

18

599 671
568 501

4,445 3,526
18,923

4,317 2,168
4,317 2,168

Notes 2019 2018

16,916

370 327

40

24

441 386

35

22,683
(1,260) (1,188)

X8A7T

X8A8T

X8A12T

X8A20T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

$ '000

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced
Proceeds from Disposal
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold
Gain (Loss) on Disposal
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets

Note 5. Current Assets

(a). Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand at Bank
Deposits at Call
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

(b). Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other
Accrued Revenues
Debtors - General
GST Recoupment
Prepayments
Sundry
Subtotal

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Total Trade & Other Receivables

(c). Inventories

Stores & Materials
Total Inventories 35 30

35 30

7,496 4,786

7,579 4,869

(83) (83)

3,818 1,331

1 -

1,021 2,439

6,959 17,518

- 16

5,938 15,079

2,497 2,446

295 932
968 144

(2,832) (1,361)
(2,832) (1,361)

Notes 2019 2018

771584
(3,416) (2,132)

X8A11T

X8A13T

X8A14T

X8A15TX8A18T

X8A21T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 3. Expenses (continued)

$ '000

(b). Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses (continued)

(ii) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses
Contractors
Energy
Maintenance
Legal Expenses
Levies Paid to Government - NRM levy
Parts, Accessories & Consumables
Professional Services
Sundry
Water & Sewer
Insurance
Library Purchases
Bank & Financial Fees
Advertising & Publications
Telephone & Publications
Postage & Courier
Fringe Benefits Tax
Subscriptions
Licence Fees
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts & Expenses

Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(c). Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(i) Depreciation and Amortisation
Buildings
Infrastructure
Plant & Equipment
Furniture & Fittings
Other Structures
Subtotal

(ii) Impairment
Nil
Total Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(d). Finance Costs

Interest on Loans
Total Finance Costs

Notes

21,561

1,529

779 834

160

206

124

692 596

232

2019 2018

12,231 11,188

321
1,685

1,645 1,551

395

21,17522,288

109
159

773989

911

367 429

155

781

103
221

1,049 1,172

166

22,729

1,637 1,509

1,029 808
1,155 702

978 846

12,774

700 486
700 486

14,147 12,774

485 435
168 158
161

8,909

504

14,147

9,348

X8A9T

X8A10T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

$ '000

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced
Proceeds from Disposal
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold
Gain (Loss) on Disposal
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets

Note 5. Current Assets

(a). Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand at Bank
Deposits at Call
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

(b). Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other
Accrued Revenues
Debtors - General
GST Recoupment
Prepayments
Sundry
Subtotal

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Total Trade & Other Receivables

(c). Inventories

Stores & Materials
Total Inventories 35 30

35 30

7,496 4,786

7,579 4,869

(83) (83)

3,818 1,331

1 -

1,021 2,439

6,959 17,518

- 16

5,938 15,079

2,497 2,446

295 932
968 144

(2,832) (1,361)
(2,832) (1,361)

Notes 2019 2018

771584
(3,416) (2,132)

X8A11T

X8A13T

X8A14T

X8A15TX8A18T

X8A21T

page 20

CITY OF MITCHAM ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 PAGE 87



City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 6. Non-Current Assets

$ '000

(a). Equity Accounted Investments in
      Council Businesses

Centennial Park Cemetery Authority
Eastern Waste Management Authority
Brown Hill Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
Total Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses

(b). Other Non-Current Assets

Capital Works-in-Progress
Total Other Non-Current Assets

4,523 6,918

19 100 68
19 610 24

16,350 15,614

19 15,640 15,522

4,523 6,918

Notes 2019 2018

X8A16T

X8A17T

X8A22T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

$ '000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Other Information
At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.D5 to retain a previously established
deemed cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addition at cost, this remains as the basis of
recognition of non-material asset classes.

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re

‐

stated such that the 
difference represents the fair value of the asset deter

‐

mined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement: 
accumulated depreciation is taken to be the difference between current new replacement cost and fair value.  In the 
case of land, current replacement cost is taken to be the fair value.

Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.

Transition to AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement
The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 
2013 as shown by the valuation dates by individual asset classes below.  

Land & Land Improvements
 - Basis of valuation: Fair Value / Market Value .
 - Date of valuation: 1 July 2017.
 - Valuer: JLL Infrastructure Advisory Pty Ltd.

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliable to qualify for recognition; 
land under roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is 
initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure. 

A capitalisation threshold of $1,000 is applied to the acquisition of land. 

Level 3 classified Land assets relate to properties where there is an inability or restriction on Council to sell this 
asset on the open market. 

Council has no material value of Land to be classified in other Levels.

Buildings & Other Structures
 - Basis of valuation: Fair Value
 - Date of valuation: 1 July 2017
 - Valuer: JLL Infrastructure Advisory Pty Ltd

Buildings have been disclosed as either Fair Value hierarchy Level 2 valuations or as Fair Value hierarchy Level 3 
valuations, in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. 

Building valuations, disclosed as Level 2, are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with directly 
or indirectly observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset. 

page 24

City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

$ '000

Valuation of Assets

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for either
recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a "level"
in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
              measurement date. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
              directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Refer to Note 7a for the disclosure of the Fair Value Levels of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment Assets.

Information on Valuations
Certain land, and the buildings and structures thereon, are shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy
level 2 valuation inputs.  They are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with directly or indirectly
observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset.

Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restrictions on use or disposal, shown above 
as being based on fair value hierarchy level 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar assets in an active 
market, but include adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset that are 
not directly or indirectly observable in that market, or the number and / or amount of observable adjustments of which 
are so great that the valuation is more fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs.

There is no known market for buildings, infrastructure and other assets. These assets are valued at depreciated
current replacement cost.  This method involves:

- The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for 
materials and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience of this or similar Councils, 
or on industry construction guides where these are more appropriate.  

- The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using current estimates 
of residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour, 
residual values and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for 
development of more efficient construction techniques.

X10A8T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

$ '000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Other Information
At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.D5 to retain a previously established
deemed cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addition at cost, this remains as the basis of
recognition of non-material asset classes.

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re

‐

stated such that the 
difference represents the fair value of the asset deter

‐

mined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement: 
accumulated depreciation is taken to be the difference between current new replacement cost and fair value.  In the 
case of land, current replacement cost is taken to be the fair value.

Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.

Transition to AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement
The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 
2013 as shown by the valuation dates by individual asset classes below.  

Land & Land Improvements
 - Basis of valuation: Fair Value / Market Value .
 - Date of valuation: 1 July 2017.
 - Valuer: JLL Infrastructure Advisory Pty Ltd.

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliable to qualify for recognition; 
land under roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is 
initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure. 

A capitalisation threshold of $1,000 is applied to the acquisition of land. 

Level 3 classified Land assets relate to properties where there is an inability or restriction on Council to sell this 
asset on the open market. 

Council has no material value of Land to be classified in other Levels.

Buildings & Other Structures
 - Basis of valuation: Fair Value
 - Date of valuation: 1 July 2017
 - Valuer: JLL Infrastructure Advisory Pty Ltd

Buildings have been disclosed as either Fair Value hierarchy Level 2 valuations or as Fair Value hierarchy Level 3 
valuations, in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. 

Building valuations, disclosed as Level 2, are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with directly 
or indirectly observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset. 
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

$ '000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Other Structures (continued)
All other assets acquired since last valuation have been valued at cost. 
Other Structure assets received free of charge are valued at Developer's costs. 
In accordance with AASB13 Fair Value Measurement, this class of assets has been disclosed as Level 3.

Capitalisation Thresholds
Capitalisation thresholds used by Council for a representative range of assets are shown below.

Office Furniture and Equipment
Plant & Equipment
Buildings - New Construction / Extensions
Park and Playground Furniture and Equipment
Road Construction and Reconstruction
Paving and Footpaths, Kerb and Gutter
Stormwater Pipes & Pits
Reticulation Extensions

Estimated Useful Lives
Useful lives are estimated for each individual asset.  In estimating useful lives, regard is had to technical and 
commercial obsolescence, as well as legal and other limitations on continued use.  The range of useful lives for a
representative range of assets is shown below, although individual assets may have an estimated total useful life of
greater or lesser amount:

Plant, Furniture and Equipment
Office Equipment 5 to 10 years
Office Furniture 3 to 10 years
Vehicles and Road-making Equipment 2 to 8 years
Other Plant and Equipment 5 to 10 years

Buildings
Buildings - Structures 40 to 80 years
Buildings- Roofing 40 years
Buildings - Fit Outs 25 to 45 years
Buildings - Services 40 to 60 years

Other Structures
Parks & Gardens 7 to 50 years
Playgrounds 25 years
Open Spaces (Benches, Seats, etc.) 20 to 80 years

1,000$  
1,000$  
5,000$  
1,000$  
5,000$  
1,000$  
5,000$  
5,000$  
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

$ '000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Buildings & Other Structures (continued)
For Building valuations, disclosed as Level 3, there is no known market for these assets and they are valued at 
depreciated current replacement cost. This method involves:

- The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for 
materials and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience of this or similar Councils, 
or on industry construction guides where these are more appropriate.

- The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using current estimates 
of residual value and useful life under the straight line depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relaying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour, 
residual values and useful lives. and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential 
for development of more efficient construction techniques. 

Assets acquired since last valuation have been valued at cost. 

In accordance with AASB13 Fair Value Measurement, 21 Buildings have been categorised as Level 2 assets.

Infrastructure
Infrastructure assets were valued by Council officers at written down current replacement cost as at 1 July 2018. 
This revaluation was based on a combination of Rawlinson's' index adjusted for effects of actual costs incurred 
during the reporting period ended 30 June 2018. 

The rates and useful lives used by council staff were externally validated by Asset Engineering (Steve Walker B Eng. 
(Civil)). 

All acquisitions made after the respective date of valuation are recorded at cost. 

Infrastructure assets received free of charge are valued at Developer's costs.

Plant & Equipment
These assets are recognised on the cost basis.

Office Furniture and Equipment
These assets are recognised on the cost basis.

Other Structures
Other Structure assets were valued by Council officers at written down current replacement cost as at 1 July 2018. 
This revaluation was based on a combination of Rawlinson's' index adjusted for effects of actual costs incurred 
during the reporting period ended 30 June 2018. 

The rates and useful lives used by council staff, for Other Structures, were externally validated by Asset Engineering 
(Steve Walker B Eng. (Civil)). 
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

$ '000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Other Structures (continued)
All other assets acquired since last valuation have been valued at cost. 
Other Structure assets received free of charge are valued at Developer's costs. 
In accordance with AASB13 Fair Value Measurement, this class of assets has been disclosed as Level 3.

Capitalisation Thresholds
Capitalisation thresholds used by Council for a representative range of assets are shown below.

Office Furniture and Equipment
Plant & Equipment
Buildings - New Construction / Extensions
Park and Playground Furniture and Equipment
Road Construction and Reconstruction
Paving and Footpaths, Kerb and Gutter
Stormwater Pipes & Pits
Reticulation Extensions

Estimated Useful Lives
Useful lives are estimated for each individual asset.  In estimating useful lives, regard is had to technical and 
commercial obsolescence, as well as legal and other limitations on continued use.  The range of useful lives for a
representative range of assets is shown below, although individual assets may have an estimated total useful life of
greater or lesser amount:

Plant, Furniture and Equipment
Office Equipment 5 to 10 years
Office Furniture 3 to 10 years
Vehicles and Road-making Equipment 2 to 8 years
Other Plant and Equipment 5 to 10 years

Buildings
Buildings - Structures 40 to 80 years
Buildings- Roofing 40 years
Buildings - Fit Outs 25 to 45 years
Buildings - Services 40 to 60 years

Other Structures
Parks & Gardens 7 to 50 years
Playgrounds 25 years
Open Spaces (Benches, Seats, etc.) 20 to 80 years

1,000$  
1,000$  
5,000$  
1,000$  
5,000$  
1,000$  
5,000$  
5,000$  
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 8. Liabilities

$ '000

(a). Trade and Other Payables

Goods & Services
Payments Received in Advance
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entitlements
Accrued Expenses - Finance Costs
Accrued Expenses - Other
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds
Other
Total Trade and Other Payables

(b). Borrowings

Loans
Total Borrowings
All interest bearing liabilities are secured over the future 

revenues of the Council

(c). Provisions

Annual Leave (including oncosts)

Long Service Leave (including oncosts)

Vested Sick Leave (including oncosts)
Total Provisions

Note 9. Reserves

$ '000

(a). Asset Revaluation Reserve

Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Other Structures
JV's / Associates - Other Comprehensive Income

Total Asset Revaluation Reserve
Comparatives

14,378

616

4,226

270,961
285,339

1/7/2018 Increments 
(Decrements)

11,614 - -

106,975

144,478

- 2,756

116

1,277

-

-

-

162 - 55 -
2,471 616 2,453 515

13,0771,235 11,842

515

30/6/2019

4,520

- 1,249

13,077

4 - 12
22 -

105 - -
29 -

-
16

-

- 2,920

10,480

1,235 1,27711,842

5,391 5,428

2,758

Notes
2019

-

1,587

Current

41 -

5,582-

- 8,899

Non Current

1,870

-

-

2019
Current

19,516 -
13,528

-

-
-
- 11,614

-

20182018
Non Current

Transfers Impairments

-
-

-- -

-

1,906 850 -

-270,961
232,468 38,493

93,447

Notes

144,478
19,516

X10A0T

X10A1T

X10A3T

X10A4T

X10A5T

X10A9T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

$ '000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Estimated Useful Lives (continued)
Infrastructure
Sealed Roads - Surface - Spray Seal 15 years
Sealed Roads - Surface - Dense Graded Asphalt 20 to 25 years
Sealed Roads - Surface - Concrete Block Paving 40 years
Sealed Roads - Surface - Concrete 50 years
Sealed Roads - Pavements - Base 60 to 80 years
Sealed Roads - Pavements - Sub-base 120 to 160 years
Unsealed Roads 10 years
Bridges - Vehicular 50 to 200 years
Bridges - Pedestrian 35 to 200 years
Footpaths 10 to 50 years
Kerbing and Gutters 30 to 80 years
Stormwater Pipes & Pits 100 years
Bus Shelters 30 years
Retaining Walls 80 years

Estimated Residual Values
Residual values are estimated for each individual asset.  A residual value of an asset is the estimated amount
that would currently be obtained from disposal of an asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if 
the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.  The disposal is to 
another party.  The estimated amount represents a cash component, as in the case of Plant and Equipment.
The range of residual values for a representative range of assets is shown below, although individual assets may
have an estimated residual value of a greater or lesser amount:

Minor Plant 0% to 76% of cost basis
Major Plant 16% to 27% of cost basis

Investment Property
As at 30 June 2019, Council did not hold any Investment Property.
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 8. Liabilities

$ '000

(a). Trade and Other Payables

Goods & Services
Payments Received in Advance
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entitlements
Accrued Expenses - Finance Costs
Accrued Expenses - Other
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds
Other
Total Trade and Other Payables

(b). Borrowings

Loans
Total Borrowings
All interest bearing liabilities are secured over the future 

revenues of the Council

(c). Provisions

Annual Leave (including oncosts)

Long Service Leave (including oncosts)

Vested Sick Leave (including oncosts)
Total Provisions

Note 9. Reserves

$ '000

(a). Asset Revaluation Reserve

Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Other Structures
JV's / Associates - Other Comprehensive Income

Total Asset Revaluation Reserve
Comparatives

14,378

616

4,226

270,961
285,339

1/7/2018 Increments 
(Decrements)

11,614 - -

106,975

144,478

- 2,756

116

1,277

-

-

-

162 - 55 -
2,471 616 2,453 515

13,0771,235 11,842

515

30/6/2019

4,520

- 1,249

13,077

4 - 12
22 -

105 - -
29 -

-
16

-

- 2,920

10,480

1,235 1,27711,842

5,391 5,428

2,758

Notes
2019

-

1,587

Current

41 -

5,582-

- 8,899

Non Current

1,870

-

-

2019
Current

19,516 -
13,528

-

-
-
- 11,614

-

20182018
Non Current

Transfers Impairments

-
-

-- -

-

1,906 850 -

-270,961
232,468 38,493

93,447

Notes

144,478
19,516

X10A0T

X10A1T

X10A3T

X10A4T

X10A5T

X10A9T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 11. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

$ '000

(a). Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to
maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the
end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Total Cash & Equivalent Assets
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows

(b). Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash
       from Operating Activities

Net Surplus/(Deficit)
Non-Cash Items in Income Statements
  Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
  Equity Movements in Equity Accounted Investments (Increase)/Decrease
  Non-Cash Asset Acquisitions
  Grants for Capital Acquisitions (Treated as Investing Activity Receipts)
  Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals

Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
  Net (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
  Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
  Net Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables
  Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations

(c). Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:
  - Physical Resources Received Free of Charge
Amounts recognised in Income Statement
Total Non-Cash Financing & Investing Activities

(d). Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the 
following lines of credit:

Corporate Credit Cards
LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility

Council does not have access to a bank overdraft facility. Council does have immediate access to a short-term draw-down facility, 

and variable interest rate borrowings under cash advance facilities from the Local Government Finance Authority of South Australia.

2019 2018

17,518

(148) (108)
(2,168)

(195) (68)

2i

93 100

465

4,317 2,168
4,317 2,168

16,446

2,168

5

Notes

1,385 1,399

2,832 1,361
17,712 18,129

(2,710)
(5) 10

64

(430)

6,959

5,393 6,339

12,774

6,959 17,518

4,317

14,147

19,573

12,500 12,500

(4,317)

X10A6T

X10A7T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 9. Reserves (continued)

$ '000

(b). Other Reserves

Other Reserves
Total Other Reserves
Comparatives

PURPOSES OF RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserves
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of
non current assets (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Other Reserves
A reserve has been recognised in regards to a bequest from the Mitcham Memorial Committee for the maintenance, 
improvement, extension/enhancement of the Mitcham War Memorial.

Note 10. Assets Subject to Restrictions

$ '000

The uses of the following assets are restricted, wholly or partially, 
by legislation or other externally imposed requirements. The assets 
are required to be utilised for the purposes for which control was 
transferred to Council, or for which the revenues were originally obtained.

Cash & Financial Assets
Unexpended amounts received from State Government
Open Space Contributions
Community Infrastructure
Trails
Sturt Creek Linear Park
Traffic Management
Total Cash & Financial Assets

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority
East Waste Management Authority
Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
Total Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

Total Assets Subject to Externally Imposed Restrictions

- -

1,727 1,796

1,4411,391

166
22

89 89
59 50

50

- -
-
-

2019

-

15,640

610

17,421

15,625

79

16,350
24

15,522

11

2018

11

Notes

1/7/2018 Tfrs from 
Reserve

 Other 
Movements 30/6/2019

11
11
11

-
- 11

Tfrs to 
Reserve

166

18,077

100

Notes

X10A2T

X10A10T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 11. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

$ '000

(a). Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to
maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the
end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Total Cash & Equivalent Assets
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows

(b). Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash
       from Operating Activities

Net Surplus/(Deficit)
Non-Cash Items in Income Statements
  Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
  Equity Movements in Equity Accounted Investments (Increase)/Decrease
  Non-Cash Asset Acquisitions
  Grants for Capital Acquisitions (Treated as Investing Activity Receipts)
  Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals

Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
  Net (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
  Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
  Net Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables
  Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations

(c). Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:
  - Physical Resources Received Free of Charge
Amounts recognised in Income Statement
Total Non-Cash Financing & Investing Activities

(d). Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the 
following lines of credit:

Corporate Credit Cards
LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility

Council does not have access to a bank overdraft facility. Council does have immediate access to a short-term draw-down facility, 

and variable interest rate borrowings under cash advance facilities from the Local Government Finance Authority of South Australia.

2019 2018

17,518

(148) (108)
(2,168)

(195) (68)

2i

93 100

465

4,317 2,168
4,317 2,168

16,446

2,168

5

Notes

1,385 1,399

2,832 1,361
17,712 18,129

(2,710)
(5) 10

64

(430)

6,959

5,393 6,339

12,774

6,959 17,518

4,317

14,147

19,573

12,500 12,500

(4,317)

X10A6T

X10A7T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 12b. Components of Functions

$ '000

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

BUSINESS UNDERTAKINGS

COMMUNITY SERVICES

CULTURAL SERVICES

ENVIRONMENT

RECREATION

REGULATORY SERVICES

TRANSPORT

UNCLASSIFIED ACTIVITIES

COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION

Activities such as depot operations net of plant recovery and other miscellaneous costs, which are not easily classified in
any of the activities, are shown in this function. 

Town Bus Service.

Public Order and Safety, Crime Prevention, Emergency Services, Other Fire Protection, Other Public Order and Safety,
Health Services, Pest Control - Health, Immunisation, Nursing Homes, Preventive Health Services, Other Health
Services, Community Support, Elderly Citizens Facilities, Home Assistance Scheme, Other Services for the Aged and
Disabled, Child Care Centres, Children and Youth Services, Community Assistance, Community Transport, Family and
Neighbourhood Support, Other Community Support, Community Amenities, Bus Shelters, Cemeteries, Public
Conveniences, Car Parking - non-fee-paying, Telecommunications Networks, and Other Community Amenities. 

Library Services, Mobile Libraries and Housebound Services, Static Libraries, Other Library Services, Cultural Services,
Cultural Venues, Heritage, Museums and Art Galleries, and Other Cultural Services. 

Agricultural Services, Agricultural Water, Animal / Plant Boards, Landcare, Other Agricultural Services, Waste
Management, Domestic Waste, Green Waste, Recycling, Transfer Stations, Waste Disposal Facility, Other Waste
Management, Other Environment, Stormwater and Drainage, Street Cleaning, Street Lighting, Streetscaping and Other
Environment. 

Parks and Gardens, Sports Facilities - Indoor, Sports Facilities - Outdoor, and Other Recreation. 

Dog and Cat Control, Building Control, Town Planning, Clean Air/ Pollution Control, Litter Control, Health Inspection,
Parking Control, and Other Regulatory Services. 

Bridges, Bus Service, Footpaths and Kerbing, Roads - sealed, Roads - formed, Roads - natural formed, Roads -
unformed, Traffic Management, LGGC - Roads (formula funded), and Other Transport. 

Governance, Administration n.e.c., Elected Members, Organisational, Support Services, Accounting / Finance, Payroll,
Housing for Council Employees, Human Resources, Information Technology, Communication, Rates Administration,
Records, Occupancy, Contract Management, Customer Service, Other Support Services, Revenues, LGGC - General
Purpose, Natural Resource Management Levy and Separate and Special Rates.

X12A3T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 12b. Components of Functions

$ '000

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

BUSINESS UNDERTAKINGS

COMMUNITY SERVICES

CULTURAL SERVICES

ENVIRONMENT

RECREATION

REGULATORY SERVICES

TRANSPORT

UNCLASSIFIED ACTIVITIES

COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION

Activities such as depot operations net of plant recovery and other miscellaneous costs, which are not easily classified in
any of the activities, are shown in this function. 

Town Bus Service.

Public Order and Safety, Crime Prevention, Emergency Services, Other Fire Protection, Other Public Order and Safety,
Health Services, Pest Control - Health, Immunisation, Nursing Homes, Preventive Health Services, Other Health
Services, Community Support, Elderly Citizens Facilities, Home Assistance Scheme, Other Services for the Aged and
Disabled, Child Care Centres, Children and Youth Services, Community Assistance, Community Transport, Family and
Neighbourhood Support, Other Community Support, Community Amenities, Bus Shelters, Cemeteries, Public
Conveniences, Car Parking - non-fee-paying, Telecommunications Networks, and Other Community Amenities. 

Library Services, Mobile Libraries and Housebound Services, Static Libraries, Other Library Services, Cultural Services,
Cultural Venues, Heritage, Museums and Art Galleries, and Other Cultural Services. 

Agricultural Services, Agricultural Water, Animal / Plant Boards, Landcare, Other Agricultural Services, Waste
Management, Domestic Waste, Green Waste, Recycling, Transfer Stations, Waste Disposal Facility, Other Waste
Management, Other Environment, Stormwater and Drainage, Street Cleaning, Street Lighting, Streetscaping and Other
Environment. 

Parks and Gardens, Sports Facilities - Indoor, Sports Facilities - Outdoor, and Other Recreation. 

Dog and Cat Control, Building Control, Town Planning, Clean Air/ Pollution Control, Litter Control, Health Inspection,
Parking Control, and Other Regulatory Services. 

Bridges, Bus Service, Footpaths and Kerbing, Roads - sealed, Roads - formed, Roads - natural formed, Roads -
unformed, Traffic Management, LGGC - Roads (formula funded), and Other Transport. 

Governance, Administration n.e.c., Elected Members, Organisational, Support Services, Accounting / Finance, Payroll,
Housing for Council Employees, Human Resources, Information Technology, Communication, Rates Administration,
Records, Occupancy, Contract Management, Customer Service, Other Support Services, Revenues, LGGC - General
Purpose, Natural Resource Management Levy and Separate and Special Rates.

X12A3T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ '000

Recognised Financial Instruments

Receivables Accounting Policy:
Other Levels of Government Carried at nominal value.

Terms & Conditions:
Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the respective programs following
advice of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts
are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal
Governments.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities Accounting Policy:
Creditors and Accruals Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for

goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Council.

Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities Accounting Policy:
Interest Bearing Borrowings Carried at the principal amounts. Interest is charged as an 

expense as it accrues.

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable 
(describe basis); interest is charged at fixed (or variable - 
describe) rates between 3.52% and 8.05% (2018: 3.52%
and 8.05%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities Accounting Policy:
Finance Leases Accounted for in accordance with AASB 117.

page 34

City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Financial Instruments

$ '000

Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits Accounting Policy:
Carried at lower of cost and net realisable value; Interest is
recognised when earned.

Terms & Conditions:
Deposits are returning fixed interest rates between 1.5% and 
2.15% (2018: 1.5% and 2.15%). Short term deposits have an
average maturity of 60 days and an average interest rate of 1.8%
(2018: 80 days and 2.05%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

Receivables Accounting Policy:
Rates & Associated Charges Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts.
(including legals & penalties for late payment) An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed 

annually) when collection in full is no longer probable.

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over the subject land, arrears attract interest of 6.35%
(2018: 6.6%). Council is not materially exposed to any individual
debtor, credit risk exposure is concentrated within the 
Council's boundaries in the State.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables Accounting Policy:
Fees & Other Charges Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts.

An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed 
annually) when collection in full is no longer probable.

Terms & Conditions:
Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council is not materially
exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundaries.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

X12A4T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ '000

Recognised Financial Instruments

Receivables Accounting Policy:
Other Levels of Government Carried at nominal value.

Terms & Conditions:
Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the respective programs following
advice of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts
are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal
Governments.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities Accounting Policy:
Creditors and Accruals Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for

goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Council.

Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities Accounting Policy:
Interest Bearing Borrowings Carried at the principal amounts. Interest is charged as an 

expense as it accrues.

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable 
(describe basis); interest is charged at fixed (or variable - 
describe) rates between 3.52% and 8.05% (2018: 3.52%
and 8.05%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities Accounting Policy:
Finance Leases Accounted for in accordance with AASB 117.
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ '000

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum 
credit risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts. All Council
investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government.
Except as detailed in Notes 5 & 6 in relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the
Council's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All
of Council's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence
neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. 
In accordance with the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of
maturity dates. Council also has available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Council has a balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are
managed holistically in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse manner.
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ '000

2019
Financial Assets
Cash & Equivalents
Receivables
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Current Borrowings
Non-Current Borrowings
Total Financial Liabilities

2018
Financial Assets
Cash & Equivalents
Receivables
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Current Borrowings
Non-Current Borrowings
Total Financial Liabilities

The following interest rates were applicable
to Council's Borrowings at balance date:

Fixed Interest Rates

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market for
the financial assets of the Council.

Total Contractual

4.93% 13,077 4.99% 14,470

8,777 6,242
- 6,242

-

- 5,994
1,235

6,736 -
- -

6,951

-

5,960 -
1,340 -

4,775

5,994

8,010

-

-

- 17,517 17,518

5,960

1,277

-

- 6,736

7,500

Value

13,077

Carrying

1,277 -

22,292 -

7,500

7,300

13,695

-

6,959 -

5,908

- 1,277

-
17,517

< 1 year

- 22,292 22,301

-

30 June 2018

Due > 1 yearDue
& ≤ 5 years

11,902 11,842

21,970

19,202 19,037

22,480

Carrying
Value

1,340

6,959 6,959

13,695 12,869

13,193

5,908

Due
> 5 years

5,960

4,775

6,528

ValuesCash Flows

6,951 13,193

4,783

Weighted Avg Weighted Avg
30 June 2019

Interest Rate
Carrying

Interest Rate

14,470
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ '000

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum 
credit risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts. All Council
investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government.
Except as detailed in Notes 5 & 6 in relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the
Council's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All
of Council's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence
neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. 
In accordance with the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of
maturity dates. Council also has available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Council has a balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are
managed holistically in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse manner.
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 15. Financial Indicators

$ '000

1.  Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus
Total Operating Income

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of total
operating revenue.

2.  Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities
Total Operating Income

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial assets 

(cash and cash equivalents plus trade and other receivables, excluding equity

accounted investments in Council businesses). These are expressed as a

percentage of total operating revenue.

Adjustments to Ratios
In recent years the Federal Government has made advance payments prior 

to 30th June from future year allocations of financial assistance grants, as 

explained in Note 1. These Adjusted Ratios correct for the resulting distortion 

in key ratios for each year and provide a more accurate basis for comparison.

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

3.  Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Net Asset Renewals
Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required expenditure

Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on

the renewal and replacement of existing assets, and excludes new

capital expenditure on the acquisition of additional assets.

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with 
Information paper 9 - Local Government Financial Indicators  prepared as 
part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for the Local Government 
Association of South Australia.

7.5%8.5%5.8%3,713

Amounts
2019 2019 2018 2017

Indicator Prior Periods

15,109 24% 11% 10%
63,972

21,736 148% 79% 85%
14,646

8% 6%

8%11%24%

63,972

6%

X12A6T
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Note 14. Commitments for Expenditure

$ '000

(a). Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Furniture & Fittings
Plant & Equipment
Other

These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

(b). Other Expenditure Commitments

Other expenditure committed for (excluding inventories) at the reporting
date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Waste Management Services

These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

(c). Finance Lease Commitments

Council has no Finance Leases.

-

4,024

4,563 10,971

4,563

2,007
1,419

-
10,971

- 30

69

- 518

-

2,784

1,068
10,971

2,575

12,305

4,563

12,305

2019 2018

-

3,824

-
-                        

Notes

2,784

5,108

2,784

2,257
7,197 527

-
12,305

X12A5T

X12A13T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 15. Financial Indicators

$ '000

1.  Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus
Total Operating Income

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of total
operating revenue.

2.  Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities
Total Operating Income

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial assets 

(cash and cash equivalents plus trade and other receivables, excluding equity

accounted investments in Council businesses). These are expressed as a

percentage of total operating revenue.

Adjustments to Ratios
In recent years the Federal Government has made advance payments prior 

to 30th June from future year allocations of financial assistance grants, as 

explained in Note 1. These Adjusted Ratios correct for the resulting distortion 

in key ratios for each year and provide a more accurate basis for comparison.

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

3.  Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Net Asset Renewals
Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required expenditure

Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on

the renewal and replacement of existing assets, and excludes new

capital expenditure on the acquisition of additional assets.

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with 
Information paper 9 - Local Government Financial Indicators  prepared as 
part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for the Local Government 
Association of South Australia.

7.5%8.5%5.8%3,713

Amounts
2019 2019 2018 2017

Indicator Prior Periods

15,109 24% 11% 10%
63,972

21,736 148% 79% 85%
14,646

8% 6%

8%11%24%

63,972

6%

X12A6T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 18. Superannuation

$ '000

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide Super (formerly 
Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. 
Permanent and contract employees of the South Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 
24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees 
(including casuals) have all contributions allocated to the Accumulation section. 

Accumulation only Members
Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer 
contributions are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with superannuation guarantee 
legislation (9.50% in 2018/19; 9.50% in 2017/18).  No further liability accrues to the Council as the superannuation 
benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund. 

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members
Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member’s 
contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer 
contributions to Salarylink as determined by the Fund’s Trustee based on advice from the appointed Actuary. 
The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2017/18) of “superannuation” salary. 

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary time earnings for Salarylink members to their 
Accumulation account.  Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund. As such, 
assets accumulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, 
as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and liabilities are 
pooled and are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another employer within the local 
government sector and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets 
and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b), Council does not use defined benefit accounting 
for these contributions. 

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willie
Towers Watson as at 30 June 2017.  The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are 
adequate for the expected Salarylink liabilities.  However, future financial and economic circumstances may require 
changes to Council’s contribution rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes 
Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund” 
legislation.  All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the 
employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the 
Council. 

X12A9T
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 16. Uniform Presentation of Finances

$ '000

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital 
investment activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform 
Presentation Framework basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets 
and long-term financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common 'core' 
of financial information, which enables meaningful comparisons of 
each Council's finances.

Income
less  Expenses
Operating Surplus / (Deficit)

Net Outlays on Existing Assets
 Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing Assets
add back  Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment
 add back Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets
Subtotal

Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets

 add back Amounts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assets
Subtotal

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year

Note 17. Operating Leases

Council does not have any Operating Leases.

 Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets 
(including Investment Property & Real Estate Developments)

771

2018

(7,589)

195 67

14,147
(17,814)

(2,282)

12,774

(58,720)
5,465

(60,259)

(3,600)

(22,320)

64,18563,972

3,713

(1,086)

(4,269)

(7,476)

584

(3,795) (2,349)

2019

X12A7T

X12A8T

page 39

PAGE 106 CITY OF MITCHAM ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 18. Superannuation

$ '000

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide Super (formerly 
Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. 
Permanent and contract employees of the South Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 
24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees 
(including casuals) have all contributions allocated to the Accumulation section. 

Accumulation only Members
Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer 
contributions are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with superannuation guarantee 
legislation (9.50% in 2018/19; 9.50% in 2017/18).  No further liability accrues to the Council as the superannuation 
benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund. 

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members
Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member’s 
contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer 
contributions to Salarylink as determined by the Fund’s Trustee based on advice from the appointed Actuary. 
The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2017/18) of “superannuation” salary. 

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary time earnings for Salarylink members to their 
Accumulation account.  Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund. As such, 
assets accumulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, 
as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and liabilities are 
pooled and are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another employer within the local 
government sector and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets 
and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b), Council does not use defined benefit accounting 
for these contributions. 

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willie
Towers Watson as at 30 June 2017.  The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are 
adequate for the expected Salarylink liabilities.  However, future financial and economic circumstances may require 
changes to Council’s contribution rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes 
Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund” 
legislation.  All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the 
employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the 
Council. 

X12A9T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

$ '000

(a) Carrying Amounts (continued)

4.1.4 to hold stormwater infrastructure constructed in the implementation of the Plan on behalf of the Constituent
Councils as agreed from time to time by resolution of the Constituent Councils;

Current there is no Mitcham Council resolution decision to transfer these asset(s) hence there is no agreement 
between City of Mitcham and the subsidiary regarding care and control of the Hawthorn Reserve Creek assets.

Consideration still needs to be given to the identification of the assets that are to be transferred and the
maintenance, public liability and insurance obligations.  Discussions between the subsidiary and constituent
Councils to resolve these issues are on-going.

The Subsidiary's financial statements have not been adjusted to reflect the accounting treatment that the City of 
Mitcham has applied.

(b) Relevant Interests

Name of Entity
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority
East Waste Management Authority
Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

(c) Movement in Investment in Joint Venture or Associate

Opening Balance
Share in Operating Result
Transfers Between Reserves
Adjustments to Equity
Council's Equity Share in the Joint Venture or Associate

Opening Balance
Share in Operating Result
Distributions Received
Adjustments to Equity
Council's Equity Share in the Joint Venture or Associate

16 26 - -

568 -
- 25

614 24

Proportion of

14%

24 -

100 67

Brown Hill and Keswick 
Creeks Stormwater Board

2019 2018 2019 2018

15,640 15,522

2018
50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

- - 9 11

2019 2018

(46)

2018 2019

- 22 (0)

14.2% 14.2% 14.2% 14.2% 14.2%

Interest in Ownership

10% 10% 10% 10% 20% 20%

Centennial Park Cemetery 
Authority

East Waste Management 
Authority

2018 2019

2019 2018
15,522 15,414 67 102

102 82 24

Voting Power
2019

Operating Share of
Result Equity
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities

$ '000

All joint ventures and associates are required to prepare Annual Financial Statements that
comply with the SA Local Government Model Financial Statements.

Joint Ventures
Total

(i) JOINT VENTURES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT OPERATIONS

(a) Carrying Amounts

Name of Entity Principal Activity
Public cemetary
Collection and disposal of waste

Total Carrying Amounts - Joint Ventures & Associates

Centennial Park Cemetery Authority
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority is a regional subsidiary established in terms of Sections 42 and 43 of the 
Local Government Act 1999 . It is a regional subsidiary of the City of Mitcham and the City of Unley, each holding 
a 50% interest in the net assets. The Council's share of net assets of the Authority included in these statements 
are consistent with the Authority's audited financial statements and notes thereto.

East Waste Management Authority
The Eastern Waste Management Authority regional subsidiary was established pursuant to Section 43 of the 
Local Government Act 1999 , for the purpose of the collection and disposal of waste within the areas of the 
Constituent Councils and the collection and disposal of waste outside the areas of the Constituent Councils. 
The Authority is a regional subsidiary established by; City of Burnside, City of Norwood, Payneham and St. Peters, 
Corporation of the Town of Walkerville, City of Mitcham, City of Campbelltown, Adelaide Hills Council. On 26
September 2017 a new charter was gazetted which has had the effect of decreasing the City of Mitcham's 
ownership interest from 26.2% to 14.2%. The transactions which occur between Council and the Authority are at 
arm's length and are for the provision of waste management services.

Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
The Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board (the Board) is a Local Government Regional Subsidiary 
established under Section 43 of and Schedule 2 to the Local Government Act 1999.  The Regional Subsidiary is 
under the control of City of Adelaide, City of Burnside, City of Unley, City of Mitcham and the City of West 
Torrens.  The Board was established by a Gazettal dated 27 February 2018.  The Board has been established 
to implement or oversee the construction and maintenance of stormwater infrastructure for the purposes of the 
implementation of the Plan.

The Board has restated it's 2018 Financials, with no material effect on the City of Mitcham so comparatives
have not been updated for this reason, but have been updated to reflect the correct percentage allocation of equity
(was shown as 20%, the correct amount is 10%).

The Subsidiary, in its 2018-19 financial year statements, has recognised $2,884,985 of work in progress relating to
Hawthorn Reserve Creek upgrade.  The City of Mitcham completed these works during the year and are also
currently treated as work in progress.  The Subsidiary's Charter states that one of its purposes is:

Oversee maintenance and construction 
of stormwater infrastructure

2019

148
2018

16,350

Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks 
Stormwater Board 610 24

Centennial Park Cemetery Authority 15,640

Council's Share of Net Assets

148 60 16,350 15,614

15,522
East Waste Management Authority 100 67

2018

Council's Share of Net Income

16,350

2019 2018 2019
60

15,614

15,614

X12A0T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

$ '000

(a) Carrying Amounts (continued)

4.1.4 to hold stormwater infrastructure constructed in the implementation of the Plan on behalf of the Constituent
Councils as agreed from time to time by resolution of the Constituent Councils;

Current there is no Mitcham Council resolution decision to transfer these asset(s) hence there is no agreement 
between City of Mitcham and the subsidiary regarding care and control of the Hawthorn Reserve Creek assets.

Consideration still needs to be given to the identification of the assets that are to be transferred and the
maintenance, public liability and insurance obligations.  Discussions between the subsidiary and constituent
Councils to resolve these issues are on-going.

The Subsidiary's financial statements have not been adjusted to reflect the accounting treatment that the City of 
Mitcham has applied.

(b) Relevant Interests

Name of Entity
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority
East Waste Management Authority
Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

(c) Movement in Investment in Joint Venture or Associate

Opening Balance
Share in Operating Result
Transfers Between Reserves
Adjustments to Equity
Council's Equity Share in the Joint Venture or Associate

Opening Balance
Share in Operating Result
Distributions Received
Adjustments to Equity
Council's Equity Share in the Joint Venture or Associate

16 26 - -

568 -
- 25

614 24

Proportion of

14%

24 -

100 67

Brown Hill and Keswick 
Creeks Stormwater Board

2019 2018 2019 2018

15,640 15,522

2018
50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

- - 9 11

2019 2018

(46)

2018 2019

- 22 (0)

14.2% 14.2% 14.2% 14.2% 14.2%

Interest in Ownership

10% 10% 10% 10% 20% 20%

Centennial Park Cemetery 
Authority

East Waste Management 
Authority

2018 2019

2019 2018
15,522 15,414 67 102

102 82 24

Voting Power
2019

Operating Share of
Result Equity
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 21. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

4. LEGAL MATTERS
Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Development Act 1993 (as amended). Pursuant to 
that Act, certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of the Council may appeal.  It is normal practice that 
parties bear their own legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council had notice of 1 appeal against planning 
decisions made prior to reporting date.  All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs 
cannot be known until the appeals are determined.

5. BROWN HILL KESWICK CREEK STORM WATER PROJECT
The City of Mitcham continues to work collaboratively with the Cities of Burnside, Unley and West Torrens and the 
Corporation of the City of Adelaide to develop a catchment based Stormwater Management Plan (SMP) for the 
Brown Hill Keswick Creek catchment. The purpose of the SMP is to mitigate and manage flood risk in the Brown 
Hill and Keswick Creek catchments and to achieve storm water reuse where feasible and economical. 

The project councils submitted the SMP 2012 in late 2012 and this SMP was subsequently approved and gazetted 
by the Stormwater Management Authority (SMA) in March 2013. Under the approved SMP, Councils proposed 
engineering and other works in Brown Hill (downstream of Anzac Highway) and Keswick Creek and its tributaries. 
These works, referred to a Part A works, were endorsed and comprised approximately 80% of the value of the 
project. Determination of the remaining flood mitigation works in Brown Hill Creek upstream of Anzac Highway 
(referred to as Part B works) was to be confirmed within one year of gazettal of the SMP 2012 (ie by March 2014). 
Due to the complexity of the proposed engineering solutions and community interest in the SMP Part B ("dam or 
no dam"), the investigations into the proposed Part B works took longer to complete than originally planned 
resulting in a further extension of time being granted by the SMA to September 2015. 

The "Brown Hill Keswick Creek SMP Part B Report" was completed in September 2014 and subsequently referred 
for community consultation during May and June 2015 after the conclusion of Local Government elections. The 
results of community consultation and the final decision on proposed Part B works have been finalised. 

The gazetted SMP 2012 requires that councils establish a regional subsidiary primarily to undertake the detail 
design, construction and maintenance of the Part A and B flood mitigation works over a defined project timetable, 
subject to funding commitments from Federal and State Governments. The five project Councils reached agreement 
to approximately 80% of the total proposed project works under Part A and continued to fund the investigation into 
a preferred option for "Part B" works. 

The forecast cost of the Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Management Plan was estimated to be in the 
order of $147 million, with implementation planned over a 10 year period. It was envisaged no construction work 
would be undertaken until after the investigation of Part B works has been completed by the Project and the final 
preferred concept approved by the SMA. 

Based on the estimated cost and cost sharing arrangements approved under the Stormwater Management Plan 
(SMP 2012), the City of Mitcham's share of the local government contribution is set at 10%, which equates to an 
indicative cost of between $5.0 million and $7.0 million depending on project funding support received. 

During September 2015 all five catchment Councils formally agreed and resolved to accept Option D (the no dam 
option) as the flood mitigation solution outlined in the Brown Hill Keswick Creek Stormwater Management Plan 
Part B. The final Stormwater Management Plan which comprises an amalgamation of Parts A and B to form the 
final "Brown Hill Keswick Catchment Stormwater Management Plan 2016" was submitted to the SMA for approval 
on 17 March 2016 with a revised estimated cost of $140 million and agreement from the catchment Councils to 
continue work on the establishment of a Regional Subsidiary. 

On 27 February 2018 the South Australian Government gazetted the establishment of the Brown Hill and Keswick 
Creeks Stormwater Board, a regional subsidiary that City of Mitcham will hold a 10% interest in. Council has 
equity accounted for its share in this regional subsidiaary in the 2017/18 Annual Financial Statements and will
continue to do so for 2018/19.
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

$ '000

(d). Contingent Liabilities of Joint Venture Operations

Each Member is Jointly and Severally Liable for the Debts of the Operation
- arising from Council's Share of Joint Operation
- arising from Joint and Several Liability of all Members

The Centennial Park Cemetery Authority has a contingent liability in relation to unused licenses in the event the 
Authority ceases to take any business. The Authority must pay an annual liability Guarantee Fee, to each 
Constituent Council, on account of the guarantee. The contingent liability for 2019 is $318k (2017: $308k).·

Note 20. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations

Council does not have any Non-Current Assets Held for Sale or any Discontinued Operations.

Note 21. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet, but knowledge is considered
relevant to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce
resources.

1. LAND UNDER ROADS
As reported in the Financial Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value 
sufficiently reliably for these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been 
recognised in the reports.  Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but 
transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

At reporting date, Council controlled 405.17 km of road reserves of average width 7.0 metres.

2. POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES
Council is a multi-purpose organisation providing a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and 
other facilities accessible to the public.  At any time, it is likely that claims will have been made against Council 
that remain unsettled.

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject to 
deductable "insurance excesses", the amount of which varies according to the class of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on average historical 
net cost (including insurance excess) of similar types of claims.  Other potential claims not reported to Council may 
have existed at reporting date.

3. BANK GUARANTEES
Council has not guaranteed certain loans and other banking facilities advanced to community organisations and 
sporting bodies at reporting date (2018: $0).

28,490 25,668
10,10510,129

2019 2018

X12A1T

X12A10T
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 21. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

4. LEGAL MATTERS
Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Development Act 1993 (as amended). Pursuant to 
that Act, certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of the Council may appeal.  It is normal practice that 
parties bear their own legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council had notice of 1 appeal against planning 
decisions made prior to reporting date.  All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs 
cannot be known until the appeals are determined.

5. BROWN HILL KESWICK CREEK STORM WATER PROJECT
The City of Mitcham continues to work collaboratively with the Cities of Burnside, Unley and West Torrens and the 
Corporation of the City of Adelaide to develop a catchment based Stormwater Management Plan (SMP) for the 
Brown Hill Keswick Creek catchment. The purpose of the SMP is to mitigate and manage flood risk in the Brown 
Hill and Keswick Creek catchments and to achieve storm water reuse where feasible and economical. 

The project councils submitted the SMP 2012 in late 2012 and this SMP was subsequently approved and gazetted 
by the Stormwater Management Authority (SMA) in March 2013. Under the approved SMP, Councils proposed 
engineering and other works in Brown Hill (downstream of Anzac Highway) and Keswick Creek and its tributaries. 
These works, referred to a Part A works, were endorsed and comprised approximately 80% of the value of the 
project. Determination of the remaining flood mitigation works in Brown Hill Creek upstream of Anzac Highway 
(referred to as Part B works) was to be confirmed within one year of gazettal of the SMP 2012 (ie by March 2014). 
Due to the complexity of the proposed engineering solutions and community interest in the SMP Part B ("dam or 
no dam"), the investigations into the proposed Part B works took longer to complete than originally planned 
resulting in a further extension of time being granted by the SMA to September 2015. 

The "Brown Hill Keswick Creek SMP Part B Report" was completed in September 2014 and subsequently referred 
for community consultation during May and June 2015 after the conclusion of Local Government elections. The 
results of community consultation and the final decision on proposed Part B works have been finalised. 

The gazetted SMP 2012 requires that councils establish a regional subsidiary primarily to undertake the detail 
design, construction and maintenance of the Part A and B flood mitigation works over a defined project timetable, 
subject to funding commitments from Federal and State Governments. The five project Councils reached agreement 
to approximately 80% of the total proposed project works under Part A and continued to fund the investigation into 
a preferred option for "Part B" works. 

The forecast cost of the Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Management Plan was estimated to be in the 
order of $147 million, with implementation planned over a 10 year period. It was envisaged no construction work 
would be undertaken until after the investigation of Part B works has been completed by the Project and the final 
preferred concept approved by the SMA. 

Based on the estimated cost and cost sharing arrangements approved under the Stormwater Management Plan 
(SMP 2012), the City of Mitcham's share of the local government contribution is set at 10%, which equates to an 
indicative cost of between $5.0 million and $7.0 million depending on project funding support received. 

During September 2015 all five catchment Councils formally agreed and resolved to accept Option D (the no dam 
option) as the flood mitigation solution outlined in the Brown Hill Keswick Creek Stormwater Management Plan 
Part B. The final Stormwater Management Plan which comprises an amalgamation of Parts A and B to form the 
final "Brown Hill Keswick Catchment Stormwater Management Plan 2016" was submitted to the SMA for approval 
on 17 March 2016 with a revised estimated cost of $140 million and agreement from the catchment Councils to 
continue work on the establishment of a Regional Subsidiary. 

On 27 February 2018 the South Australian Government gazetted the establishment of the Brown Hill and Keswick 
Creeks Stormwater Board, a regional subsidiary that City of Mitcham will hold a 10% interest in. Council has 
equity accounted for its share in this regional subsidiaary in the 2017/18 Annual Financial Statements and will
continue to do so for 2018/19.
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 23. Related Party Transactions (continued)

$ '000

Transactions with Council Regional Subsidiary Entities
The information presented below represents additional information relating to transactions recorded during the 
financial year with Council's Subsidiary entities. The information presented below is in addition to that already 
disclosed in Note 19. Council is an equity owner of each Regional Subsidiary disclosed in Note 18 along with 
other Member Councils. 

Member Councils have equal representation on the Board of which Council is a member of the following 
Subsidiaries:
 - Centennial Park Cemetery Authority
 - East Waste Management Authority
 - Brown Hill and Keswick Creek Stornmater Board

Member Councils have influence on the financial and strategic operational decisions of the Subsidiary given their 
equal Board member representation. 

No one Member Council individually has control over these decisions. 

The following material transactions occurred with the each Regional Subsidiary during the financial year:

$ '000

East Waste Management Authority
Brown Hill and Keswick Creek Stormwater Board
Total

Amounts recorded above as outstanding are recorded as a liability in Note 8.

2019 2018

3,392 346 2,163 81

2,867 113 2,089 81
525 233 74 -

Pmts Made Outstanding Pmts Made Outstanding
2018 2018 2017 2017
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 22. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2019, up to and including the date when the financial
statements are "authorised for issue" have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Certification of Financial Statements as the appropriate 
"authorised for issue" date relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Accordingly, the "authorised for issue" date is 25/11/19.

Council is unaware of any material or significant "non adjusting events" that should be disclosed.

Note 23. Related Party Transactions

$ '000

Key Management Personnel

Transactions with Key Management Personel
The Key Management Personnel of the Council include the Mayor, Councillors, 
CEO and certain prescribed officers under section 112 of the Local Government 
Act 1999 .  In all, 25 persons were paid the following total compensation:

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:
Short-Term Employee Benefits
Long-Term Benefits
Termination Benefits
Total

Amounts paid as direct reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of Council have not been included above.

Council received $Nil from Key Management Personnel other than amounts paid as ratepayers or residents 
(e.g. rates, animal registration, etc.). 

KMP and relatives of KMPs own retail businesses from which various supplies were purchased as required 
either for cash or on ordinary account terms. Purchases from none of these individual businesses exceeded 
$10,000 during the year. 

Key management personnel or close family members (including related parties) lodged a total of  two planning 
and building applications during the year. In accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, Key Management 
Personnel are required to declare conflicts of interest and take no part in the assessment or approval processes 
for these applications. 

Two elected members are members of the Centennial Park Cemetery Authority's Board of Management. 

One elected member is a director of the East Waste Management Authority.

50                 
2,351        

2,130            

-                    
2,269        

171               

2019 2018

2,246            
23                 
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City of Mitcham

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 23. Related Party Transactions (continued)

$ '000

Transactions with Council Regional Subsidiary Entities
The information presented below represents additional information relating to transactions recorded during the 
financial year with Council's Subsidiary entities. The information presented below is in addition to that already 
disclosed in Note 19. Council is an equity owner of each Regional Subsidiary disclosed in Note 18 along with 
other Member Councils. 

Member Councils have equal representation on the Board of which Council is a member of the following 
Subsidiaries:
 - Centennial Park Cemetery Authority
 - East Waste Management Authority
 - Brown Hill and Keswick Creek Stornmater Board

Member Councils have influence on the financial and strategic operational decisions of the Subsidiary given their 
equal Board member representation. 

No one Member Council individually has control over these decisions. 

The following material transactions occurred with the each Regional Subsidiary during the financial year:

$ '000

East Waste Management Authority
Brown Hill and Keswick Creek Stormwater Board
Total

Amounts recorded above as outstanding are recorded as a liability in Note 8.

2019 2018

3,392 346 2,163 81

2,867 113 2,089 81
525 233 74 -

Pmts Made Outstanding Pmts Made Outstanding
2018 2018 2017 2017
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that the audit conducted in accordance with the Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Council’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by Council. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Council to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
 
 
 
DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 

 
 
SAMANTHA CRETEN 
PARTNER 
 
Signed on the 5th day of December 2019, 
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide 

 
 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standard Legislation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
To the members of the City of Mitcham 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial report of the City of Mitcham (the Council), which comprises the 
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019, Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statements of Changes 
in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and the Council Certificate of Council. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the 
Council as at 30 June 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 2011 and the 
Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described as in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. 
We are independent of the Council in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.   
 
 
 
Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report 
 
The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1999 
and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011. This responsibility includes determining that 
the basis of preparation described in Note 1 is appropriate to meet the need of the members. The Council’s 
responsibility also includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to enable the 
preparation of the financial report to be free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, the Council is responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless Council either intends to liquidate the Council or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so.   
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Council’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE 114 CITY OF MITCHAM ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



2 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that the audit conducted in accordance with the Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Council’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by Council. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Council to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
 
 
 
DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 

 
 
SAMANTHA CRETEN 
PARTNER 
 
Signed on the 5th day of December 2019, 
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide 
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An assurance engagement to report on the designed and operating effectiveness of controls involves performing 
procedures to obtain evidence about the suitability of the design of the controls to achieve the control objectives 
and the operating effectiveness of the controls throughout the period. The procedures selected depend on our 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks that the controls are not suitably designed or the controls did 
not operate effectively. Our procedures included testing the operating effectiveness to the controls that we 
consider necessary to achieve the control objectives identified. An Assurance engagement of this type also 
includes evaluating the suitability of the control objectives.       
 
Limitation on Use 
 
This report has been prepared for the members of the Council in accordance with Section 129(1)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1999 in relation to the Internal Controls specified above. We disclaim any assumption of 
responsibility for any reliance on this report to any persons or users other than the members of the Council, or 
for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared.   
 
Limitations of Controls  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are 
suitably designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, or 
non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected.  
 
An assurance engagement on operating effectiveness of controls is not designed to detect all instances of 
controls operating ineffectively as it is not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests 
performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of controls to future periods 
is subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with them may deteriorate. 
 
 
DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 

 
 
SAMANTHA CRETEN 
PARTNER 
 
Signed on the 5th day of December 2019 
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia, 5006 

 
 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standard Legislation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROLS OF THE CITY OF MITCHAM 
 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Council has complied, in all material respects, with Section 129(1)(b) of the Local Government 
Act 1999 in relation to the Internal Controls established by the Council relating to the receipt, expenditure and 
investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities so as to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial transactions of the Council have been conducted properly and in accordance with 
law for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We have audited the Internal Controls of the City of Mitcham (the Council) under the requirements of Section 
129(1)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls established by the Council 
to ensure that financial transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition 
and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 have been 
conducted properly and in accordance with law. 
 
We conducted our engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3150 Assurance 
Engagements on Controls issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 
 
We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
 
The Council’s Responsibility for the Internal Controls  
 
The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adequate system of internal controls, in 
accordance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and 
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and incurring of liabilities have been conducted 
properly and in accordance with law. 
 
Our Independence and Quality Control 
 
We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance 
engagements, and applying Auditing Standard ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review 
of Financial Reports and Other Financial Information, and Other Assurance Engagements in undertaking the 
assurance engagement.  
 
Assurance Practitioner’s Responsibilities 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council’s compliance with Section 129(1)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls established by the Council to ensure that financial 
transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property 
and incurring of liabilities, based on our procedures have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.  
 
ASAE 3150 requires that we plan and performed our procedure to obtain reasonable assurance about whether, 
in all material respects, the controls are suitably designed to achieve the control objectives and the controls 
operating effectively through the period.  
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An assurance engagement to report on the designed and operating effectiveness of controls involves performing 
procedures to obtain evidence about the suitability of the design of the controls to achieve the control objectives 
and the operating effectiveness of the controls throughout the period. The procedures selected depend on our 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks that the controls are not suitably designed or the controls did 
not operate effectively. Our procedures included testing the operating effectiveness to the controls that we 
consider necessary to achieve the control objectives identified. An Assurance engagement of this type also 
includes evaluating the suitability of the control objectives.       
 
Limitation on Use 
 
This report has been prepared for the members of the Council in accordance with Section 129(1)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1999 in relation to the Internal Controls specified above. We disclaim any assumption of 
responsibility for any reliance on this report to any persons or users other than the members of the Council, or 
for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared.   
 
Limitations of Controls  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are 
suitably designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, or 
non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected.  
 
An assurance engagement on operating effectiveness of controls is not designed to detect all instances of 
controls operating ineffectively as it is not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests 
performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of controls to future periods 
is subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with them may deteriorate. 
 
 
DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 

 
 
SAMANTHA CRETEN 
PARTNER 
 
Signed on the 5th day of December 2019 
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia, 5006 
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Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standard Legislation 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Certification of Auditor’s Independence  
 

 

 

I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of the City of Mitcham for the year ended 30 
June 2019, I have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 – 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional 
and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.  

 

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011. 

 
 
 

 
 
SAMANTHA CRETEN 

Partner 

 

 
DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS      

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

 

 
Dated this 5th day of December 2019 
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Certification of Auditor’s Independence  
 

 

 

I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of the City of Mitcham for the year ended 30 
June 2019, I have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 – 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional 
and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.  

 

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011. 

 
 
 

 
 
SAMANTHA CRETEN 

Partner 

 

 
DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS      

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS      

 

 
Dated this 5th day of December 2019 
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Centennial Park Cemetery Authority 2018/19 Annual Report
https://www.centennialpark.org/wp-content/uploads/bsk-pdf-manager/2019/10/1337_CC_A4_2019_Annual_Report_hyperlinks-1.pdf

Eastern Waste Authority 2018/19 Annual Report
https://www.eastwaste.com.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/EAS82020-East-Waste-Annual-Report-2018-19-final-30.9.19.pdf

Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Management Board 2018/19 Annual Report
https://bhkcstormwater.com.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/BHKC-Annual-Report-2018-19.pdf

https://www.centennialpark.org/wp-content/uploads/bsk-pdf-manager/2019/10/1337_CC_A4_2019_Annual_Report_hyperlinks-1.pdf
https://www.centennialpark.org/wp-content/uploads/bsk-pdf-manager/2019/10/1337_CC_A4_2019_Annual_Report_hyperlinks-1.pdf
https://www.eastwaste.com.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/EAS82020-East-Waste-Annual-Report-2018-19-final-30.9.19.pdf
https://www.eastwaste.com.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/EAS82020-East-Waste-Annual-Report-2018-19-final-30.9.19.pdf
https://bhkcstormwater.com.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/BHKC-Annual-Report-2018-19.pdf
https://bhkcstormwater.com.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/BHKC-Annual-Report-2018-19.pdf


Volunteers, Gamble Cottage




